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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental acuvities, the business-type activies,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaming fund information of the Town of Montville, Connecticut (the “Town”)
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectvely comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as histed
in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Town’s management. Our
responsibility 1s to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit mcludes consideration of mnternal control over financial reporting as a basis
for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supportng the amounts and disclosures 1 the
financial statements, assessing the accountng principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basts
for our opnions.

In our opion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respectve
financial positton of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund mnformaton of the Town of Montville, Connecuicut as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in
financial posidon, and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General
Fund for the year then ended in conformuity with accountng principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 28, 2013 on our
consideradon of the Town’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 1ts compliance with certamn
provistons of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report 1s to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinton on the effecuveness of the Town’s mternal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Srandards
and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis on pages 3 through 17 and the schedule of funding progress on page 58 be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a required part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accountng Standards Board who considers 1t to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operatonal, economuc, or historical context. This required
supplementary mformaton is the responsibility of management. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditng standards generally accepted in the United States of
America established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. These limited procedures consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the bastc financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the mnformauon because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the fimancial statements that collecuvely comprise
the Town’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund statements and schedules are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such supplementary
information s the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures. These
additional procedures included comparing and reconciling the information directly to the undetlying accountng and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additonal procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. In our opinion, the supplementary information
1s fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Bk Thandon LU

Glastonbury, Connecticut
February 28, 2013
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TOWN OF MONTYVILLE, CONNECTICUT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The management of the Town of Montville, Connecticut (the “Town”) offers the readers of 1ts financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

® The assets of the Town exceeded 1ts liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $122,517,881 (net
assets). Of thuis amount, $20,927.595 represents unrestricted net assets. Of this amount, $6,161,909
represents unrestricted net assets attributed to the operations of the Town’s Sewer and Water Departments
(business-type activites).

e The Town’s total net assets increased by $5,815,457 during the current fiscal vear, which consisted of a
current year increase of $4,678,430 relaung to the Town’s governmental actvites and $1,137,027 relaung to
the Town’s business-type activities.

® As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported a combimned ending fund
balance of §7,686,528, a current year increase of $6,197,961 in comparison with the prior year. Of thus
amount, there was a current year decrease of $125,611 in the General Fund, an increase of $3,990,813 in the
Bonded Projects Fund, an increase of $2,461,213 in the Public Safety Buildmng Fund, and a current year
decrease of §128,454 in the other governmental funds.

e At the close of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $2,511,215 or 4.3%
of total general fund expenditures and net other financing sources. Expressed another way, unassigned fund
balance for the General Fund was sufficient to cover 0.5 months of general fund operating expenditures.

e The Town’s total long-term bonded debt (governmental and business-type activities combined) mcreased by
$9,007,001 or 22.5% dunng the current fiscal year as a result of bond antictpation notes recetved less
scheduled principal repayments.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an mntroduction to the Town’s basic financial statements. The
Town’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund
financral statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Town’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the Town 1s improving or deterioratng,



TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Government-wide Financial Statements (Continued)

The statement of activities presents informaton showing how the Town’s net assets changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement
for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused
vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements are intended to distnguish funcuons of the Town that are
principally supported by taxes and mtergovernmental revenues (governmental actuvities) from other functions that
are intended to recover all or a significant poruon of their costs through user fees and charges (busmess-type
acuvities). The governmental actvities of the Town include acuvites such as: general government, public works,
public safety, health and welfare, recreation and leisure and educaton. The business-type acuvites of the Town
include sewer and water activides.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 18 and 19 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund 1s a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Town can be divided into three categories:
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities
i the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as
well as on balances of spendable resources avaiable at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluaung the Town’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds 1s narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it
is useful to compare the mformation presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By domng so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the Town’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Town maintains several individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the General Fund, the Bonded Projects Fund and the Public Safety Building Fund,
all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a
single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 20 - 24 of this report.

4.



TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

Management’s Discusston and Analysis (Conzinued)

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
Proprietary Funds

Enterprise funds are used to report the same funcuons presented as business type activides in the government-
wide financial statements. The Town uses enterprise funds to account for its sewer and water operations.
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in
more detail.

Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the
Town’s vartous functions. The Town uses an mternal service fund to account for its risk management
acuvities. Because this service predominantly benefits governmental rather than business-type functions, 1t has
been included within governmental acuvities in the government-wide financial statements.

The basic proprietary fund fiancial statements can be found on pages 25 - 27 of this report.
Fiduciary Funds
Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the Town government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those
funds are not available to the Town’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds 1s much like that
used for proprietary funds.
The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 28 and 29 of this report.
Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes to the financial statements provide addidonal mnformaton that 1s essenual to a full understanding of the
data provided 1n the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can
be found on pages 30 - 56 of this report.
Other Information
In additon to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also contains required

supplementary information and combining and individual fund statements and schedules which can be found on
pages 58 and 59 - 81 of this report, respectively.



TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net Assets

Over time, net assets may serve as one measure of a government’s financial position. Total net assets of the
Town (governmental and business type acuvities combined) totaled $122,517,881 and $116,702,424 as of June 30,
2012 and 2011 and are summarized as follows:

Town of Montville, Connecticut
Net Assets

June 30, 2012

Governmental Business-type

Acuvities Acuvites Total

Current and other assets $21,188,693 § 6,342,719 § 27,531,412
Capural assets 95,724,553 56,914,955 152,639,508
Total assets 116,913,246 63,257,674 180,170,920
Other liabilities 3,525,351 137,615 3,662,966
Long-term lhabilities 48,831,467 5,158,606 53,990,073
Total liabilities 52,356,818 5,296,221 57,653,039

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 49,703,439 51,799,544 101,502,983
Restacted 87,303 . 87,303
Unrestricted 14,765,686 6,161,909 20,927,595
Tortal net assets $ 64,556,428  $57,961,453 $122,517,881

Town of Montville, Connecticut
Net Assets
June 30, 2011
Governmental Business-type
Acuvites Acuvites Total

Current and other assets $ 12,363,283 § 3,611,463 § 15,974,746
Capital assets 92,027,760 57,889,634 149,917,394
Total assets 104,391,043 61,501,097 165,892,140
Other labilities 3,149,112 430,282 3,579,394
Long-term liabilities 41,363,933 4,246,389 45610,322
Total habilities 44,513,045 4,676,671 49,189,716

Net assets:
Invested 1n capital assets, net of related debt 53,880,685 53,692,360 107,573,045
Restricted 80,453 - 80,453
Unrestricted 5,916,860 3,132,066 9,048,926
Total net assets $59,877,998  §56,824,426 $116,702,424

_6-



TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continned)

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Net Assets (Continued)

Net Assets
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As of June 30, 2012, 77.0% of the Town’s net assets reflect 1ts investment m capital assets, less any related debt
used to acquire those assets that 1s still outstanding. The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to
ciuzens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spendmg. Although the Town’s mvestment n 1ts
capital assets 1s reported net of related debt, 1t should be noted thart the resources needed to repay this debt must

be provided from other sources since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to hiquidate these habilities.

Less than 1% of the Town’s net assets are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used and are

therefore presented as restricted net assets.

The remainder of the Town’s net assets are considered unrestricted.

Overall, net assets increased by $5,815,457 1n comparison with the prior year.



TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Condnued)

Changes in Net Assets

Changes in net assets for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Town of Montville, Connecticut
Changes in Net Assets
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Governmental Business-type
Actvities Activities Total
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 2566479 § 6,881,824 § 9,448,303
Operating grants and contributions 20,345,602 277,659 20,623,261
Capital grants and contributions 1,917,057 - 1,917,057
General revenues: -
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 35,701,419 - 35,701,419
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 3,448,145 - 3,448,145
Income from investments 49,380 6,524 55,904
Total revenues (4,028,082 7,166,007 71,194,089
Expenses
General government 6,589,959 - 6,589,959
Public works 3,920,661 - 3,920,661
Public safety 3,668,232 - 3,668,232
Health and welfare 210,773 - 210,773
Recreaton and lesure 348,135 348,135
Education 42,680,890 - 42,680,890
Interest on long-term debt 1,361,201 - 1,361,201
Sewer department - 5,149,440 5,149,440
Water department - 1,449,341 1,449,341
Total expenses 58,779,851 6,598,781 65,378,632
Change in net assets before transfers 5,248,231 567,226 5,815,457
Transfers (569,801) 569,801 -
Change 1n net assets 4,678,430 1,137,027 5,815,457
Net assets, beginning 59,877,998 56,824,426 116,702,424
Net assets, ending $ 64,556,428 § 57,961,453 § 122,517,881




TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continuned)

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)
Change in Net Assets (Continued)

Town of Montville, Conne

cticut

Changes in Net Assets
For The Year Ended june 30, 2011

Governmental Business-type

Activities Acuvites Total
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 3,859,990 § 5,679,929 § 9,539,919
Operating grants and contributions 19,788,918 263,272 20,052,190
Capital grants and contributions 2,727,907 - 2,727,907
General revenues:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 34,309,252 - 34,309,252
Grants and contibutions not restricted to specific prog 3,121,870 - 3,121,870
Income from investments 45,906 1,431 47,337
Total revenues 63,853,843 5,944,632 69,798,475
Expenses
General government 7,398,178 - 7,398,178
Public works 4,224 978 - 4224978
Public safety 3,897,422 - 3,897,422
Health and welfare 204,940 - 204,940
Recreation and lessure 315,692 - 315,692
Educaton 43,596,142 - 43,596,142
Interest on long-term debt 1,598,161 - 1,598,161
Sewer department - 5,383,165 5,383,165
Water department - 1,325,639 1,325,639
Total expenses 61,235,513 6,708,804 67,944,317
Change 10 net assets before transfers 2,618,330 (764,172) 1,854,158
Transfers (217,441) 217,441 -
Change 1n net assets 2,400,889 (546,731) 1,854,158
Net assets, beginning 57,623,208 57,184,101 114,807,309
Adjustments (146,099) 187,056 40,957
Net assets - beginning, as adjusted 57,477,109 57,371,157 114,848,266

Net assets, endmg $59,

877,098  $56,824 426

§ 116,702,424




TOWN OF MONTYVILLE, CONNECTICUT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Contnued)

Change in Net Assets (Continued)

2012 Revenues by Source - Govermental Activities
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Contznued)

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Change in Net Assets (Continued)
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continned)

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Contnued)
Change in Net Assets (Continued)
Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased the Town’s net assets by a current year change of $4,678,430. This increase 1s
mainly attributable to the current year fund activity, less the capital asset and debt activity for the current year.

Business-type Activities
Business-type activities increased the Town’s net assets by a current year change of §1,137,027. The current year

increase was primarily caused by an increase in total revenues, as well as a net transfer in of $569,801 from the
General fund related to the transfer of capital assets.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN’S FUNDS

As noted eatlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the Town’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information 1s useful i assessing the Town’s financing requirements. In
particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the Town’s net resources available for
spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance
of $7,686,528.

General Fund

The general fund 1s the chief operating fund of the Town. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund
balance of the general fund was $2,511,215. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to
compare unassigned fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 4.3% of total
general fund expendirures and transfers out. Expressed another way, unassigned fund balance for the general
fund was sufficient to cover 0.5 months of general fund operating expenditures and transfers out.

The fund balance of the Town’s general fund decreased by $125,611 during the current fiscal year, which was
primarily due to certamn unfavorable revenue variances due to bankruptey of a major taxpayer.

Bonded Projects Fund

The fund balance of the Bonded Projects Fund increased by $3,990,813 during the current fiscal year. This
increase was primarily due to proceeds received from bond anticipation notes.

_12.



TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN’S FUNDS (Continued)
Public Safety Building Fund

The fund balance of the Public Safety Building Fund increased by $2,461,213 during the current fiscal year. Thus
increase was primarily due to proceeds recetved from bond anticpation notes, offset by capital outlay
expenditures for the construction of a public safety building,

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The actual net change in fund balance of the General Fund on a budgetary basis was a decrease of $866,223.
Expenditures were §768,185 less than budgeted, and total budgetary revenues were §1,730,488 less than expected
due primarily to an unfavorable vartance in property taxes due to the bankruptcy of a major taxpayer and an
unfavorable variance related to personal property audit revenue. During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Town
Council approved additional appropriations of $8,500 from fund balance.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets
The Town’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type acuvites as of June 30, 2012
totaled $152,639,508 (net of accumulated depreciation and amortizaton). This investment in capital assets
includes land, construction in progress, land improvements, buildings and mmprovements, distribution and
collection systems, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure. The tortal increase in the Town’s investment in
capital assets for the current fiscal year was §2,722,114 or 1.8%. This increase consisted primarily of capital asset

additons of approxumately $6.4 million, offset by depreciaton expense of approxmmately $3.7 million. Major
caprtal asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

e Outlays for construction of the public safety building 1 the amount of $4,052,744.
e Tax foreclosure on property and buildings totaling $229,130.
¢ Outlays for various building and improvements totaling $875,625.

e Outlays for various machinery and equipment and vehicles totaling $1,185,843, including the purchase of
muluple police vehicles and school buses.

- 13-



TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Continued)

Capital Assets (Continued)

The following are tables of the investment in capital assets presented for both governmental and business-type
actvities:

Town of Montville, Connecticut
Capital Assets, Net

June 30, 2012
Governmental Business-type
Activines Actvities Total
Land $ 1717448 § 1,127,031 § 2844479
Construction mn progress 5,832,171 729,287 6,561,458
Land mprovements 289,043 - 289,043
Buildings and improvements 73,894,008 13,163,581 87,057,589
Infrastructure 9,389,516 - 9,389,516
Machinery and equipment 4,602,367 5,825,034 10,427,401
Distribution and collection systems - 36,070,022 36,070,022
Totals $ 95724553 § 56914955 § 152,639,508

Town of Montville, Connecticut
Capital Assets, Net
June 30, 2011

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activites Total

Land $ 1,947288 § 1,127,031 § 3,074,319
Construction in progress 1,529,349 385,859 1,915,208
Land improvements 306,470 - 306,470
Buildings and improvements 74,628 422 13,294,745 87,923,167
Infrastructure 9,509,086 - 9,509,086
Machinery and equipment 4,107,145 6,241,934 10,349,079
Distribution and collection systen - 36,840,065 36,840,065

Totals § 92,027,760  $57,889,634  §149,917,394

- 14 -



TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continned)

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Continued)

Capital Assets (Continued)

Capital Assets
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization)
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Addtuonal information on the Town’s capital assets can be found m Note D on pages 42 - 43 of this report.

Long-term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town had total debt outstanding of §49,100,000. This enure amount 1s
comprsed of debt backed by the full faith and credit of the Town. The Town’s total debt imncreased by
$9,007,001 or 22.5% during the current fiscal year due to the issuance of $12,125,000 bond anucipation notes
offset by the scheduled principal repayments.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt the Town may 1ssue to seven tumes 1its annual receipts
from taxation, as defined by the statutes. The current debt limitanon for the Town is $237,242,467, which is
significantly in excess of the Town’s outstanding general obligation debt.



TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Contznued)

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Continued)
Long-term Debt (Continued)

The following are tables of long-term bonded debt:
Town of Montville, Connecticut

Long-term Debt
June 30, 2012

Governmental ~ Business-type

Acuvities Activities Total
General obliganon bonds $ 33552600 §  1,422400 $ 36,975,000
Bond anntcipation notes 10,625,000 1,500,000 12,125,000
Totals $ 46,177,600 § 2922400 § 49,100,000

Town of Montville, Connecticut
Long-term Debt
June 30, 2011

Governmental Business-type

Acuvities Activities Total
General obligatuon bonds $ 38,197,600 § 1,777.400  $39,975,000
CL&P note payable 117,999 - 117,999
Totals $ 38,315,599 § 1,777.400  $40,092,999
Ourstanding Debt

; $45,000,000
$40,000,000
$35.000.000 - |
$30.000.000 j e : §
$25,000,000 +— : o2 |
$20.000.000 4— "
$15.000000 +— | ‘ |
$10.000.000 4+— | |
$5,000,000  +—

Amount

General CL&P note Bond
obliganon pavable anocipanon
bonds notes

Additional information on the Town’s long-term debt can be found in Note G on pages 45 - 48 of this report.
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

A summary of key economuc factors affecting the Town are as follows:

e The unemployment rate for the Town 1s currenty 8.8% compared to the state’s average unemployment rate
of 8.1% and the natonal unemployment rate of 8.2%.

e Unassigned fund balance of the General Fund totals $2,511,215 at June 30, 2012.

e Significant estimates affecting next year’s budger that are subject to change in the near term consist of the
following:

o For purposes of calculatng property tax revenues for fiscal year 2012, the assessor’s grand st was
used along with an estimated tax rate, and an estimated rate of collection, with deductions for taxes
to be paid by the State on behalf of certain taxpayers.

o Intergovernmental grants were based on estimates from the State.

o It is unknown how changes in market interest rates will impact real estate activity and related
revenues collected by the Town Clerk and the amount of conveyance taxes and interest income.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the Town’s budget for fiscal year 2013.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town’s finances for all those with an interest
in the Town’s finances. Questions concernng any of the informauon provided in this report or requests for
additional information should be addressed to the Finance Director, Town of Montville, 310 Norwich-New
London Tpke., Uncasville, Connecticut 06382.
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Recewvables:
Property taxes, net of allowance for
uncollectibles of $225,000
Interest on property taxes and assessments,
net of allowance for uncollectibles of §188,000
Assessments and user charges recevable
net allowance for uncollectibies of $239,500
Connection fees
Intergovernmental
Other
Internal balances
Inventories
Noncurrent assets:
Recetvables:
Connection fees
Other
Deferred charges on bond 1ssuance, net
Capiral assets:
Non-depreciable
Depreciable, net
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts pavable and accrued expenses
Accrued liabilines:
Salaries and benefits pavable
Accrued mterest
Claims pavable
Unearned revenue
Noncurrent liabilittes:
Due within one year'
Bonds and note payable
Compensated absences
Contract payable
Early reurement mcentive
Landfill postclosure
Due 1n more than one year:
Bonds and note payable
Compensated absences
Contract payable
Early retrement mncentve
Liugation and judgement
Landfill postclosure
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested 1n capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Grant program purposes
Other purposes
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

s 14274703 $ 4,081,651 18,356,354
2442962 2,442962
621,850 621,850
276,920 1,313,536 1,590,456
- 218,261 218,261
2,603,624 - 2,603,624
102,451 57,479 159,930

728,674 (728,674) -
16,963 - 16,963
1,091,322 1,091,322
- 296.881 296,881
120,546 12.263 132,809
7,549,619 1,856,318 9,405,937
88,174,934 55,058.637 143,233,571
116,913,246 63,257,674 180,170,920
2,331,452 110,141 2,441,593
271,130 - 271,130
433,613 27,474 461,087
437172 - 437,172
51,984 - 51,984
3,093,400 176,600 3,270,000
346.900 8.639 355,539
- 218,261 218.261
95,941 - 95,941
19,000 19,000
43,048,260 2,861,738 45,909,998
1,387,638 34,556 1,422,194
- 1,858,812 1,858,812
81,328 81,328
550,000 550,000
209,000 - 209,000
52,356,818 5,296,221 57,653,039
49,703,439 51,799.544 101,502,983
84,649 - 84,649
2,654 - 2,654
14,765,686 6,161,909 20,927,595
$ 64,556,428 $ 57,961,453 122,517,881

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Recetvables:
Property taxes, net of allowance for
doubtful accounts of $225,000
Interest on property taxes and assessments,
net of allowance for uncollectbles of $188,000
Assessments receivable
Intergovernmental
Other
Due from other funds
Advances to other funds
Inventories
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)

Laabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued liabilines:
Salaries and benefits pavable
Due to other funds
Unearned/deferred revenue
Total habilines

Fund Balances (deficst):

Nonspendable:

Advances to other funds

Inventory
Restricted for:

Grant program purposes

Exernal
Commutted to:

Educauon

Recreaton

Captrtal projects

Other governmental purpose
Assigned to:

Public safety

Education

General government

Public Works

Public Safety - Severance
Unassigned

Total fund balances (deficit)
Total habilines and
fund balances (deficit)

Bonded Public Safety Nonmajor Total
General Projects Building Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 13,480,733 $ - $ - $ 628,022 $ 14,108,755
2,442962 - - - 2,442.962
621,850 - - 621,850
276.920 - - - 276.920
598,024 1,710,785 - 294,815 2,603,624
100,043 - - 2,408 102,451
2,084,722 - 3,201,185 1,218,896 6,504,803
780,022 - - - 780,022
- - - 16,963 16,963
S 20.385.276 $ 1,710,785 $ 3201185 § 2,161,104 $ 27,458,350
$ 1,115,259 $ - $ 1,100,308 $ 115,885 $ 2,331,452
271,130 - - - 271,130
9,830,006 1,519,295 - 816,939 12,166,240
3,240,231 1,710,785 - 51,984 5,003.000
14,456,626 3,230,080 1,100,308 984,808 19,771,822
780,022 - - - 780.022
- - - 16,963 16,963
- - - 84,649 84,649
- - - 2,654 2,654
- - - 338.257 338257
- - - 13,998 13,998
- 2,100,877 639.420 2,740,297
- - - 163,730 163,730
33,100 - - 33,100
2,405,565 - - - 2.405,565
172,011 - - - 172,011
8,037 - - - 8.037
18,700 - - - 18,700
2,511,215 (1,519,295) - (83,375) 908.545
5,928.650 (1,519,295) 2,100,877 1,176,296 7.686,528
$ 20,385,276 $ 1,710,785 $ 3,201,185 $ 2,161,104 $ 27,458,350

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012

Tortal fund balance for governmental funds

Total net assets reported for governmental acuvities 1n the statement of
net assets 1s different because:

Capital assets used 1n governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported n the governmental funds. Those assets
consist of:

Land

Constructuon 1n progress

Land improvements

Buildings and improvements

Machinery and equipment

Infastrucrure

Less accumulated depreciauon and amortizanion
Total capiral assets, net

Bond 1ssuance costs are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds.
However, these costs are deferred and amortized over the life of the
related debt in the statement of net assets.

Bond issuance costs
Less accumulated amortization
Total bond 1ssuance costs, net

Some of the Town's taxes, assessments, interest and other recetvables will
be collected after year end, but are not available soon enough to pay for the
current period's expenditures, and therefore are reported as deferred
revenue in the funds.

Long-term school construction grant recervables recerved from the State of
Connecucut are not available soon enough to pay for current period's
expenditures, and therefore are reported as deferred revenue in the funds.

Long-term habilines applicable to the Town's governmental activines are
not due and payable 1n the current period and accordingly are not reported
as fund liabiliies. All liabilities - both current and long-term - are reported
in the statement of net assets.

Accrued 1nterest payable
Long-term debt:
Bonds and note payable, net

Other long-term habilines:
Compensated absences
Early retirement incentive
Litiganon judgements
Landfill closure

Tortal long-term habilities

An internal service fund 1s used by the Town to charge the cost of nisk
management activites to individual funds. The assets and Labiliues of
the internal service fund are mncluded 1n governmental activities 1n the
statement of net assets.

Net assets of governmental acuviues

1,717,448
5,832,171
975,678
87,042,362
12,007,983
16,209,611
(28,060,700)

148,365
(27,819)

(433,613)

(46,141,660)

(1,734,538)
(177,269)
(550,000)
(228,000)

The accompanytng notes are an tntegral part of these financial statements .
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7,686,528

95,724,553

120,546

3,240,231

1,710,785

(49,265,080)

5,338,865

64,556,428



TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

REVENUES
Property taxes
Assessments
Intergovernmental
State on-behalf payments
Charges for services
Donatons
Investment earnings

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Recreation and lersure
Miscellaneous
State on-behalf payments
Educaton
Debt service:
Pnncipal pavments
Interest and fiscal charges
Capial outlays
Total expendirures

Deficiency of revenues
over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from 1ssuance of bond anncipation notes
Premium on bond anucipanon notes
Transfers n

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change m fund balances

Fund balances (deficit) - beginning

Fund balances (deficit) - ending

Bonded Public Safety Nonmajor Toral
General Projects Building Governmental ~ Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

$ 33,987,794 - $ - $ - § 33,987,794
191,189 - - 191.189
17.493,109 - 710,557 2.891,203 21,094,869
3.691.115 - - - 3.691.115
2,084,204 ; 3,400 614,102 2,701.706

- - - 140.849 140.849

49314 - 42 49,356
57,496,725 - 713,957 3,646,196 61,856.878
6,214,100 - 173,482 06,387.588
3,682,253 - - - 3.682.253
3.264,298 - - 232,307 3,496,605
212,596 - - - 212,596
257,085 - - 62,366 319.451
48.250 - - 48.250
3,691,113 - - - 3,691,115
35,886.274 - - 2,557,065 38,443.339
2,762,999 - - - 2,762,999
1,403,666 - - - 1,403,666
328,026 9,187 4,052,744 1,574,430 5,964,387
57,750.668 9,187 4,052,744 4,599.650 66,412,249
(253,943) (9.187) (3,338,787) (953,454) (4,555,371)

- 4,000,000 5,800,000 825,000 10,625,000

21,429 - - - 21,429
106.903 : - - 106,903
128.332 4.000.,000 5.800,000 825,000 10.753.332
(125,611) 3,990,813 2,461,213 (128,454) 6,197,961
6,054.261 (5,510,108) (360.336) 1,304,750 1,488.567
$ 5,928.650 (1,519.295) % 2,100,877 $ 1,176,296 $ 7,686,528

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements .
ipanying 8
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Net change in fund balances (deficit) - toral governmental funds $ 6,197,961

Total change 1 net assets reported for governmental activities m the statement of
acuvites 1s different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, 1n the
statement of activities the cost of those assets 1s allocated over therr esumated
useful lives and reported as deprecianion expense. The amount by which
capital outlay exceeded depreciatnon and amorstizaton expense in the current
peniod 1s as follows:

Expenditures for capiral assets $ 5,818,792
Depreciation and amoruzation expense (2,151,170)
Net adjustment 3,667,622

In the statement of actvines, only the gan (loss) on the sale of capiral assets
1s reported whereas the proceeds from the sale increase financral
resources 11 the governmental funds. (199,959)

Capital assets acquired through foreclosure mncrease net assets in the
statement of actvites, but do not appear m the governmental funds
because they are not financal resources. 229,130

The 1ssuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of pnncipal on Jong-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transacnon, however, has any effect on net assets. The net effect of
these differences 1 the tearment of long-term obligatons 1s as follows:

Debr i1ssued or incurred:

Bond anuacipatnon notes payable (10,625,000)
Pancipal repayments:
Bonds and note payable 2,762,999
Net adjustment (7,862,001)

Undes the modified accrual basts of accounting used 1n the governmental
funds, expendirures are not recognized for transactions that are not normally
paid with expendable available financial resources. In the statement of
activities, however, which 1s presented on the accrual basss, expenses and
liabiliues are reported regardless of when financial resources are available.

In addinon, interest on long-term debt 1s not recognized under the modified
accrual basss of accounting undl due, rather than as it accrues. The net
effect of such 1ems 1s as follows:

Accrued mnterest $ 33,074
Deferred charges 9.273)
Unamortized bond premium 41,335
Unamortized gain on refunding (44,100)
Compensated absences 290,994
Early renrement mncenuve 87,238
Landfill postclosure 19,000
$ 418,268
Certain revenues reported 1n the statement of actvines do not provide current
financial resources and therefore are reported as deferred revenues 1n
governmental funds. This amount represents the change in deferred revenue. 1,632,667
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activines to individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of a certain internal
service fund 1s reported with governmental acavines. 594,742
Change 1n net assets of governmental acuvites $ 4,678,430

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
223



TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
BUDGETARY BASIS - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Variance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Original Final Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 35,541,683 $ 35,541,683 $ 33,987,794 $  (1,553,889)
Intergovernmental 16,673,169 16,673,169 17,427,321 754,152
Charges for services 3,134,503 3,134,503 2,164,999 (969,504)
Use of town money 201,750 201,750 240,503 38,753
Total revenues 55,551,105 55,551,105 53,820,617 (1,730,488)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 6,633,670 6,581,470 6,364,492 (216,978)
Public safety 3,697,051 3,769,851 3,707,440 (62,411)
Public works 3,433,099 3,408,599 3,269,790 (138,809)
Health and welfare 178,148 181,148 181,023 (125)
Social services 33,231 33,231 31,573 (1,638)
Recreanon and lessure 259,154 268,554 257,085 (11,469)
Miscellaneous 61,650 61,650 48,250 (13,400)
Education 36,632,735 36,632,735 36,617,890 (14,845)
Captal outlay 561,200 561,200 316,461 (244,739)
Debt service: -
Principal payments 2,645,000 2,645,000 2,645,000 -
Interest and fiscal charges 1,467,417 1,467,417 1,403,666 (63,751)
Tortal expenditures 55,602,355 55,610,855 54,842 670 (768,185)
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (51,250) (59,750) (1,022,053) (962,303)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 10,000 10,000 106,903 96,903
Cancellauon of prior year encumbrances - - 48,927 48,927
Appropriatuon of fund balance 41,250 49,750 - (49,750)
Total other financing sources 51,250 59,750 155,830 96,080
Net change 1n fund balances $ - $ - $ (866,223)  § (866,223)

The accompanyng notes are an integral part of these financal statements .
-4 -



TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS -

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2012

Governmental
Business-type Activities Acuvities
Total Internal
Sewer Water Business-type Service
Deparment Deparment Activites Fund
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,689,699 $ 391,952 $ 4,081,651 $ 165,948
Recesvables:
User charges, net allowance for
doubtful accounts of $239,500 1,125.215 188,321 1,313,536 -
Connection fees - 218,261 218,261 N
Other 57,479 - 57,479 -
Due from other funds 52,367 34,556 86,923 5,610,089
Deferred charges on bond 1ssuance, net 12,263 - 12,263 -
Tortal current assets 4.937,023 833,090 5,770.113 5,776,037
Noncurrent assets:
Receivables:
Connection fees - 1.091,322 1,091.322 -
Other 296,881 - 296,881 -
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable 1,088,131 768,187 1,856,318 -
Depreciable, net 43.582,303 11,476,334 55,058,637 -
Total noncurrent assets 44,967,315 13,335,843 58,303,158 -
Total assets 49,904,338 14,168,933 64,073,271 5,776,037
LIABILITIES
Current habilines:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses - 110,141 110,141 -
Accrued interest 27,474 - 27,474 -
Claims payable - - - 437,172
Due to other funds 34,556 1,019 35,575 -
Total current habilites 62,030 111,160 173,190 437172
Non-current habilines:
Due within one year:

Bonds payable 176,600 - 176,600 -
Compensated absences 8,639 - 8,639 -
Contract payable - 218,261 218,261 -

Due 1n more than one year:

Advances from other funds 780,022 - 780,022 -

Bonds pavable 2,861,738 - 2,861,738 -

Compensated absences 34,556 - 34,556 -

Contract payable - 1,858,812 1,858,812 -

Total non-current liabilines 3,861,555 2,077.073 5,938,628 -
Total liabilines 3,923,585 2,188,233 6,111,818 437,172
NET ASSETS
Invested 1 capital assets, net of related debt 41,632,096 10,167,448 51,799,544 -
Unrestricred 4,348,657 1,813,252 6,161,909 5,338,865
Total nec assets $ 45,980,753 $ 11,980,700 $ 57,961,453 $ 5,338,865

The accompanyng notes are an integral part of these financial starements.
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS -

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities
Tortal Internal
Sewer Water Business-type Service
Department Department Activities Fund
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services and premiums $ 5,657,998 $ 1,223,826 $ 6,881,824 $ 7,122,894
Intergovernmental 277,659 - 277,659 -
Total operating revenues 5,935.657 1,223.826 7,159.483 7.122.894
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services 778,095 49915 828,010 -
Supplies and administration 1,331,783 1,027,570 2,359,353
Maintenance 457,111 14,429 471,540
Energy and transportation 862.156 47.299 909,455
Insurance and taxes 373921 31.239 405,160 -
Claims incurred - - - 5,696,162
Administration . - - - 735,111
Depreciation 1,282,608 278,889 1,561,497 -
Total operating expenses 5.085.674 1,449,341 6,535,015 6,431,273
Operating income (loss) 849,983 (225,515) 624,468 691,621
NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE)
Interest income 6,199 325 6,524 24
Interest expense (63,766) - (63,766)
Total non-operating income (expense) (57.567) 325 (57,242) 24
Change 1n net assets before transfers
and capital contributions 792,416 (225,190) 567.226 691.645
Caputal contributions 236,373 343,428 579,801 -
Transfer out (10,000) - (10,000) (96,903)
Change 1n net assets 1,018.789 118,238 1,137,027 594,742
Net assets - beginning 44 961,964 11,862,462 56,824,426 4744123
Net assets - ending $ 45,980,753 $ 11,980,700 $ 57,961,453 $ 5,338,865

The accompanying notes are an wtegral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Governmental
Business-type Activites Activities
Total Internal
Sewer Water Business-type Service
Departunent Deparmment Activities Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash recewved for the following:
Customers and users $ 5,524,578 $ 1,191,826 $ 6,716,404 $ 6,534,714
Intergovernmental 117,203 22,718 139,921 -
Cash pad for the following:
Personnel services (793,502) (53,184) (846,686) -
Supplies and admunistranon (1,331,783) (1.002,474) (2,334.257) (735,111)
Maintenance (597,098) (14.429) (611,527) -
Energy and transportauon (862,156) (47,299) (909,455) -
Insurance and taxes (373,921) (31,239) (405,160) -

Benefits and claims - (5,754,988)

Net cash provided by operaung acuviues 1,683,321 65,919 1,749,240 44,615

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayments on advances from other funds (299,978)

- (299,978) -
Transfers 1n 111,636 51,506 163,142 -
Transfers out - - - (96,903)
Net cash provided by (used 1n) noncapital financing activives (188,342) 51.500 (136,836) 96,903)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capital assets (5,535) (5.135) (10,670) -
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 3,653 - 3,653
Payments collected on long-term recervables 191,662 218,261 409,923
Interest pard on capital debt (76,305) - (76,305)
Principal paid on captal debt (355,000) (217,945) (572,945) -
Proceeds from bond anucipaton notes 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 -
Net cash provided by (used 1n) capital and related financial actvines 1.258,475 (4,819) 1.253,656 -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income 6,199 325 0,524 24
Net cash provided by mvesung acuvines 6,199 325 6.524 24
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,759.653 112,931 2,872,584 (52,264)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of vear 930,046 279.021 1.209.067 218.212
Cash and cash equivalents, end of vear $ 3.689.699 $ 391,952 $ 4,081.651 $ 165.948

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operaung income (loss) $ 849,983 ) (225,515) $ 024,468 $ 691,621
Adjustments to reconcile operaung mncome (loss) to
net cash provided by operaung acuviues:

Depreciation expense 1,282,608 278,889 1.561,497 -
Changes 1n assets and habihues:

Increase i user charges recetvable (133,420) (32,000) (165,420)

Decrease 1n other recervables - 22718 22718

Increase (decrease) 1n accounts payable (139,987) 25,096 (114.891)

Decrease 1n accrued payroll (12.110) (646) (12.756) -
Decrease 1n unearned revenue (160,456) - (160,456) -
Decrease in compensated absences (3,297) (2.623) (5,920) -
Increase 1 due from other funds - (588,180)
Decrease sn claims payable - - - (58.826)
Net cash provided by operaung acuvites $ 1.683.321 $ 65919 $ 1,749.240 $ 44.615

NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase 1n depreciable capital assets through capatal transfer 1n $ 236,373 $ 343428 $ 579.801 $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2012

Private
Purpose
Trust Fund -
School Agency
Scholarships Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 67,763 $ 385,122
Investments, at fair value:
Certificates of deposit 90,973 11,193
Equity mutual funds 143,811 -
Fixed income mutual funds 34931 -
Total assets 337,478 $ 396,315
LIABILITIES
Due to student groups - 240,175
Due to others - 156,140
Total liabilities - $ 396,315
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits
and other purposes $ 337,478

The accompanyzng notes are an integral part of these financial statements .
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES

IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Private
Purpose
Trust Fund -
School
Scholarships
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Private donations $ 14,514
Total contributions 14,514
Investment earnings:
Interest 3,031
Net decrease in the fair
value of investments (1,839)
Total investment earnings 1,192
Total additions 15,706
DEDUCTIONS
Awards expense 25,552
Admunistrative expenses 324
Total deductions 25,876
Change m net assets (10,170)
Net assets - beginning 347,648
Net assets - ending $ 337,478

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements .
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TOWN OF MONTYVILLE, CONNECTICUT
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies of the Town of Montville, Connecucut (the “Town”) conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, as applicable to governmental organizations. The followmg is a

summary of significant accounung policies:

Financial Reporting Entity

The Town of Montville, Connecticut was settled in 1786 and covers 43.9 square miles located in the Southeastern
part of Connecticut. The Town operates under a2 Town Council/Mayor form of government and provides the
following services as authorized by its charter: public safety, public works, health, soctal services, recreation,
planning and zoning, education and muscellaneous programs not included 1n the above.

The legislatve power of the Town 1s vested with the Town Council and Town Meeting. The Town Council may
enact, amend or repeal ordinances and resolutions. The Town Council 1s responsible for financial and taxation
matters as prescribed by Connecticut General Statutes, and 1s responsible for presenting fiscal operating budgets for
Town Meeting approval.

Accounting principles generally accepted 1n the United States of America require that the reportung enuty include
the primary government and its component units, entities for which the government 1s considered to be financially
accountable, all organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, and other organizations
which by nature and significance of their relatonship with the primary government would cause the financial
statements to be incomplete or musleading if excluded. Blended component units, although legally separate entiues,
are in substance, part of the government’s operauons and therefore, data from these units are combined with data
of the primary government. Based on these criteria, there are no component units requiring inclusion m these
financial statements.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements
Government-wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and the statement of activites display information about the Town and mclude the
financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary acuvides. Eliminations have been made to
minimize the double-countng of internal acuvines. laterfund services provided and used are not elimmnated 1n
the process of consolidation. The statements are intended to distinguish between governmental and business-
type actvities. Governmental acuvities generally are financed through taxes, mtergovernmental revenues, and
other nonexchange transactions. Business-type acuvities are financed in whole or 1n part by fees charged to
external parues.

The statement of acuvities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are offset
by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program
revenues include 1) charges to customers or apphcants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or prvileges provided by a given funcuion and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported as general revenues.
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2012

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the Town’s funds, mncluding its fiduciary funds.
Separate statements for each fund category — governmental, proprietary and fiduciary - are presented. The
emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds and enterprise funds, each displayed in a
separate column. All remaining governmental funds and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as
nonmajor funds.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - This fund is the Town’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those accounted for in another fund.

Bonded Projects Fund - This fund 1s used to account for the revenues and expenditures related to major
capital asset construction and/or purchases.

Public Safety Building Fund — This fund is used to account for the revenue and expenditures related to the
construction of the new Public Safety Building.

The Town reports the following major proprietary funds:
Sewer Deparrment - This fund 1s used to account for activities of the Town’s Sewer department.
Water Department - This fund 1s used to account for activities of the Town’s Water department.
In addition, the Town reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Fund (proprietary) - This fund accounts for acuvitdes that provide goods or services to
other funds, departments, or agencies of the Town on a cost-reimbursement basis. The Town utilizes an
internal service fund to account for risk management activities.

Private Purpose Trust Funds - This fund type is used to account for trust arrangements under which
principal and income benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments. There is no
requirement that any portion of the resources be preserved as capital. The Town utilizes a private purpose
trust fund to account for activities of the School Scholarships Private Purpose Trust Fund.

Agency Funds - These funds are used to account for resources held by the Town in a purely custodial
capacity. The Town utlizes these funds to account for assets of the student activites funds and the
performance bonds fund. The student activittes funds account for monies generated by student actvities in
the Town’s school system. The performance bonds fund accounts for monies received to ensure that new
home construction is performed per specifications.
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
Notes to Financial Statements (Conzznued)
June 30, 2012

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Measuremenr Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and basis
of accounting. Measurement focus mndicates the type of resources being measured such as current financial
resources or economuc resources. Lhe basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for
recogrution in the financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported usmng the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accountng. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a hability
mn incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the vear
for which they are levied. Grants and sumilar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measureable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to pay labilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is mncurred, as under accrual accountng. However, debt
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, and claims and judgments, are
recorded only when payment 1s due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital lease are reported as other
financing sources.

Property taxes and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to
accrual and so have been recognized as revenues in the current fiscal period. Entitlements are recorded as
revenues when all eligibility requirements are met, mncluding any time requirements, and the amount 1s received
during the pertod or within the availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year end).
Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and
all other eligibility requirements have been met, and the amount is received durmg the period or withmn the
availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year end). All other revenue items are considered
to be measurable and available only when the cash 1s recerved.

The proprietary and private-purpose trust funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. The agency fund has no measurement focus but utilizes the accrual basts
of accountung for reporting its assets and labilities.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connections with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Town’s enterprise
funds consist of charges to customers for services relating to sewer and water usage. Operating expenses of the
Town’s enterprise funds include the cost of operations and maintenance, administrauve expenses, and
depreciation of capital assets. The principal operating revenues of the Town’s internal service fund consist of
charges for premiums. Operating expenses of the Town’s internal service fund consist of claims incurred and
admunistrative expenses. Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses.



TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
Notes to Financial Statements (Continned)
June 30, 2012

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type
activities and enterprise fund financial statements subject to the same limitation. The Town has elected not to
follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity

Cash Equivalents

The Town’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
mvestments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments

Investments for the Town are reported at fair value (generally based on quoted market prices) except as described
below.

The Town invests in the State Treasurer’s Short-Term Investment Fund (STIF), which is an investment pool
managed by the State Treasurer’s Office, and the Cooperative Liquid Asset Security Systems Fund (CLASS), which
1s an investment pool managed by Cutwater Asset Management. STIF and CLASS operate in conformity with all of
the requirements of the Securides and Exchange Commission’s (SEC) Rule 2a7 as promulgated under the
Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. Accordingly, STIF and CLASS qualify as a 2a7-like pools and are
reported at the net asset value per share (which approximates fair value) even though it is calculated using the

amortized cost method. STIF and CLASS are subject to regulatory oversight even though they are not registered by
the SEC.

Inventories

Inventories are reported at cost using the first-in first-out (FIFO) method, except for USDA donated
commodities, which are recorded at market value. Inventores are recorded as expenditures when consumed
rather than when purchased.

Property Taxes, Sewer Assessment and Usage Charges

Property taxes are assessed as of October 1. Real estate and personal property taxes are billed in the following
July and are due in two installments, July 1 and January 1. Motor vehicle taxes are billed 1n July and are due in
one installment, July 1, and supplemental motor vehicle taxes are due in full January 1. Taxes become
delinquent thirty days after the installment i1s due. Liens are effective on the assessment date and are continued
by filing before the end of the year following the due date. Based on historical collection experience and other

factors, the Town has established an allowance for uncollectible taxes and interest of $413,000 as of June 30,
2012.



TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2012

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity (Continued)

Property Taxes, Sewer Assessment and Usage Charges (Continued)

Upon completion of projects, water and sewer assessments are levied and assessed to the users each February.
Usage charges are billed quarterly or monthly depending on the property type, beginning in January.
Assessments and user charges are due and payable within thirty days and delinquent amounts are subject to
interest at prevailing rates. Liens are filed on all propertes until the assessment is paid mn full.

Capital Assets

Caprtal assets, which include property, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are reported m the applcable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements and proprietary
fund financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial individual cost of
more than $5,000 for equipment, $20,000 for improvements and $100,000 for infrastructure, and an esumated
useful life 1n excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost, or estimated historical cost, 1f
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of
donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of a capital asset or materially extend
capital asset lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as
projects are constructed. Interest incurred net of interest earned on project specific debt during the
construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities and enterprise funds are included as part of the
capitalized cost of the assets constructed.

Capital assets of the Town are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful

lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 35-50
Building improvements 20
Distribution and collectuon systems 50 - 65
Infrastructure 30 - 50
Land improvements 30 - 50
Machinery and equipment 5-20

Caprtal assets acquired under capital lease are amortzed over the life of the lease term or estimated useful life of
the asset, as applicable.

Unearned/Deferred Revenue
In the government-wide and fund financial statements, this liability represents resources that have been received

but not yet earned. In the fund fiancual statements, thus liability also represents revenues considered measurable
but not available during the current period.
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2012

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity (Continued)

Compensated Absences

Under the terms of various union contracts, Town and Board of Education employees are granted vacaton and
sick time 1n varying amounts based on length of service. Town employees may not carry over any accumulated
vacation tune and may carry over a limited number of sick days to subsequent years. In the event of retirement,
Town employees are reimbursed for accumulated vacation and sick days based on union contract. Board of
Education employees may carry over a limited number of unused vacation days to the next fiscal year. When a
Board of Educaton employee retires, limited accumulated unused sick leave is not paid but added to the
credited service used to calculate pension benefits.

All compensated absences are accrued when incurred in the government-wide, propretary fund and fiduciary
fund financial statements. Expenditures for compensated absences are recognized i the governmental fund
financial statements in the current year to the extent they have matured (L.e. due to resignation or retirement).

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and
other long-term obligations are reported as habilities in the applicable statement of net assets. Bond premiums
and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effectve
interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance
costs are reported as deferred charges.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums recerved on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Net Assets and Fund Balance

The government-wide statement of net assets presents the Town’s non-fiduciary assets and liabilities, with the
difference reported as net assets. Net assets are reported m three categories:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - This category consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and amoruzation and reduced by outstanding balances for bonds, notes and other debt that are
attributed to the acquisition, construction or improvement of capirtal assets.

Restricted net assets - Thus category consists of net assets whose use is restricted either through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, and the like, or through restrictions imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislauon.

Unrestricted net assets - This category consists of net assets which do not meet the definition of the two
preceding categories.



TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
Notes to Fmancial Statements (Conzznued)
June 30, 2012

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equityv (Continued)

Net Assets and Fund Balance (Continued)
The Town’s governmental funds report the following fund balance categories:

Nonspendable — Amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form or they are legally or
contractually required to be maintained ntact.

Restricted — Constramnts are placed on the use of resources that are either externally imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors or laws and regulations of other governments or imposed by law through enabling
legislaton.

Committed — Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by
formal acuon of the Town Council (the highest level of decision making authority of the Town) and cannot
be used for any other purpose unless the Town removes or changes the specified use by taking the same
formal action.

Assigned — Amounts are constrained by the government’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but are
not restricted or committed. Amounts may be constrained to be used for a specific purpose by a governing
board or body or official that has been delegated authority to assign amounts by the Town Charter.

Unassigned — Residual classification for the General Fund or amounts necessary in other governmental
funds to eliminate otherwise negative fund balance amounts in the other four categories.

The Town does not have a formal policy over the use of fund balance. In practice, the Town uses restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed. Unrestricted resources are used in the following order:
commutted; assigned; then unassigned. It is the Town’s policy to maintamn an unassigned fund balance in the
General Fund between 5% and 12% of the Town’s general fund budget. Two-thirds vote of the enture Town
Council is required to decrease total fund balance below 8%.

Inrerfund Activities

Interfund activities are reported as follows:
Interfund Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of
the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e. the current portion of interfund loans) or
“advances to/from other funds” (i.e. the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding
balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds”. Any residual balances outstanding between
the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial
statements as “internal balances”.

Interfund Services Provided and Used

Sales and purchases of goods and services between funds for a price approximating thewr external exchange
value are reported as revenues and expenditures, or expenses, in the applicable funds.
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2012

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interfund Activities (Continued)

Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers represent flows of assets without equivalent flows of assets in return and without a
requirement for repayment. In governmental funds, transfers are reported as other financing uses 1 the funds
making transfers and other financing sources in the funds receiving transfers. In proprietary funds, transfers
are reported after non-operating revenues and expenses.

Interfund Reimbursements

Interfund reimbursements represent repayments from the funds responsible for particular expenditures or
expenses to the funds that initially paid for them.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make esumates and assumptons that affect the reported amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE B - BUDGETARY INFORMATION AND DEFICIT FUND BALANCES

Budgetary Information

The Town adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data included in the General Fund
financial statements, in accordance with provision of its Town Charter.

Q By 100 days before the close of the fiscal year, the head of each department, office and agency submits to the
Finance Director detailed estimates of expenditures and any revenues other than tax revenues expected to be
collected. Expenditures are controlled at the department level.

O The Mayor submits a Capital Improvement Program for the ensuing fiscal year and the immediate four
subsequent years to the Town Council for changes from the prior year’s program by 75 days before the close
of the fiscal year. It is then submitted to the Planning and Zoning Commission for approval. The Council
then adopts the Program. The Program details the project, cost estimates, methods of financing, tme
schedules, and the estimated annual cost of the facility operation.

O By 75 days before the close of the fiscal year, the Mayor presents a budget message, esumates of revenues
and expenditures and justifications to the Town Council.

Q By 60 days before the close of the fiscal year, the Town Council publishes the partculars of the budgets and
holds one or more public hearings.

Q  The Town Council may add, increase, delete or decrease any programs or amounts except for those prohibited

by law. The budget is returned to the Mayor, who approves it or vetoes one or more line items (except for the
Board of Education budget). A veto may be overridden by a two-thirds vote of the entire Council.
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
Notes to Financial Statements (Conzinued)
June 30, 2012

NOTE B - BUDGETARY INFORMATION AND DEFICIT FUND BALANCES (Continued)

Budgetary Information (Continued)

O The Town Council adopts the final budget before 30 days of the close of the fiscal year.

O If the Town Council fails to adopt a budget withun the prescribed umeframe, the previous year’s budget
prevails on a month-to-month basis untl the new budget 1s adopted.

O With written approval of a department head and the Director of Finance, transfers between line ttems within a
department can be made. The Town Council may transfer unexpended balances between departments.

QO The Board of Education may transfer unespended balances berween accounts within its total line
appropration.

O Additional appropriations may be made during the year by resolution of the Town Council. Additional
approprations from fund balance for the year ended June 30, 2012 amounted to $8,500.

O Encumbrances are recognized as a valid and proper charge against a budget appropriatton in the year 1n which
the purchase order, contract or other commitment is issued and, accordingly, encumbrances outstanding at
year-end are reported in budgetary reports as expenditures of the current vear. Generally, all unexpended
appropriations lapse at vear-end, except those for Capital Projects Funds and certain Spectal Revenue Funds.
Appropriations for capital projects are continued untl completion of applicable projects, even when projects
extend more than one fiscal year.

As described above, accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on a budgetary basis differ from
those used to present financial statements 1n conformuty with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (“GAAP basis”). A reconciliation of General Fund amounts presented on the budgetary basis to
amounts presented on the GAAP basis 1s as follows for the year ended June 30, 2012:

Other Net Change
Total Total Financing Sources - in
Revenues Expenditures Transfers, Net Fund Balance
Budgetary basts $ 53,820,617 $ 54,842,670 $ 155,830 $ (866,223)
"On-behalf" payments -
State Teachers Retirement
Fund (se¢e Note 1) 3,691,115 3,691,115 - -
Encumbrances - (789,539) (48,927) 740,612
Reimmbursement for certain
costs recorded as a reduction
to expenditures for budgetary
purposes 6,422 6,422 - -
Certain items recorded as
revenues for budgetary
purposes (21,429) - 21,429 -
GAADP basis $ 57,496,725 $ 57,750,668 $ 128,332 $ (125,611)
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2012

NOTE B - BUDGETARY INFORMATION AND DEFICIT FUND BALANCES (Continued)
Deficit Fund Balances

The following funds have deficit fund balances as of June 30, 2012, none of which constitutes a violation of
statutory provisions:

Fund Amount
Bonded Projects Fund k) 1,519,295
Town Aid Road Fund 60,657
Palmertown Water Project Phase 2 Fund 22,718

The deficits are expected to be eliminated through future revenue sources and bonding.
NOTE C - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
A reconciliation of the Town’s cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2012 1s as follows:

Government-wide statement of net assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 18,356,354
Statement of fiducliary net assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 452,885

18,809,239

Add: certificates of deposit classified as investments 102,166
Less: cash equivalents considered investments

under GASB Statement No. 40 (9,334,205)
$ 9,577,200

Cash Deposits — Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Town will not be able to recover its
deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The
Town does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. Effective December 31, 2010, extending through
December 31, 2012, all noninterest-bearing transaction accounts are fully insured, regardless of the balances of the
account. As of June 30, 2012, $6,298,661 of the Town’s bank balance of $10,854,630 was exposed to custodial
credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and uncollateralized $ 5,668,795

Unmsured and collaterized with securines held by the pledging
bank's trust department or agent but not in the Town's name 629,866
$ 6,298,661
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2012

NOTE C - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Cash Deposits — Custodial Credir Risk (Conrinued)

All of the Town’s deposits were 1 qualified public institutions as defined by Connecticut state statute. Under this
statute, any bank holding public deposits must at all tmes maintain, segregated from its other assets, eligible collateral
m an amount equal to a certain percentage of its public deposits. The applicable percentage is determined based on
the bank’s risk-based capital ratio. The amount of public depostts is determined based on cither the public deposits
reported on the most recent quarterly call report, or the average of the public deposits reported on the four most
recent quarterly call reports, whichever is greater. The collateral 1s kept in the custody of the trust department of either
the pledging bank or another bank in the name of the pledging bank.

Investments
A reconciliation of the Town’s mvestments as of June 30, 2012 is as follows:

Government-wide statement of net assets:

Investments $ -
Statement of fiduciary net assets:
Investments 280,908
280,908
Add: cash equivalents considered investments
under GASB Statement No. 40 9,334,205
Less: certificates of deposit classified as investments (102,166)
$ 9,512,947

As of June 30, 2012, the Town’s investments consist of the following:

Investment
Maturities
(In Years)
Fair Less
Investment type Value Than 1
Debt Securities:
Pooled fixed income accounts $ 9,331,709 $ 9,331,709
Fixed income mutual funds 34,931 34,931
Money market mutual funds 2,496 2,496

9369136 $ 9,369,136

Other investments:
Equity mutual funds 143,811
9,512,947

&5

Because the money market and fixed income mutual funds have weighted average maturites of less than 90 days, they
are presented as investments with maturities of less than one year.
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NOTE C - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk

The Town does not have a formal investment policy that limits Town investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. However, its practice is to
structure the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations,
thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on the open market prior to maturity, and investing operating funds
primarily in shorter-term securities, money market mutual funds, or similar mvestment pools.

Credit Risk

The Town has no investment policy that would further himit its investment choices beyond those limited by
Connecucut state statutes. Connecticut state statutes permit the Town to invest in obligations of the United
States, including its instrumentalities and agencies; in obligations of any state or of any political subdivision,
authority or agency thereof, provided such obligations are rated within one of the top two rating categories of
any recognized rating service; or in obligations of the State of Connecticut or of any political subdivision
thereof, provided such obligations are rated within one of the top three rating categories of any recognized
ratng service.

The Town’s investments 1n pooled fixed income accounts, whose ratings are required to be disclosed, were
rated AAA by Standard & Poor’s.

Custodial Credit Risk
For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a counterparty, the Town
will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. The Town’s investments are not exposed to custodial credit risk at June 30, 2012, as they are
held by a trustee 1n the Town’s name.

Concentrations of Credit Risk
The Town places no limit on the amount of investment in any one issuer. More than 5 percent of the Town’s

investments are in pooled fixed income accounts. Investments in this type of account are considered
diversified by nature.
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NOTE D - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset actvity for governmental acuvities for the year ended June 30, 2012 consisted of the following:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not bemng depreciated:
Land $ 1947288 § 106,900 §  (336,740) 1,717,448
Construcunon in progress 1,529,349 4,548,545 (245,723) 5,832,171
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 3,476,637 4,655,445 (582,463) 7,549,619
Capital assets, being deprecated:
Land mmprovements 975,678 - - 975,678
Buildmgs and improvements 86,505,609 639,253 (102,500) 87,042,362
Machtnery and equipment 11,191,953 1,175,173 (359,143) 12,007,983
Infrastructure 16,114,537 95,074 - 16,209,611
Total capital assets, being depreciated 114,787,777 1,909,500 (461,643) 116,235,634
Less accumulated deprecianon and amortizanon for:
Land improvements 669,208 17,427 686,035
Buildings and improvements 11,877,187 1,281,417 (10,250) 13,148,354
Machinery and equipment 7,084,808 637,682 (316,874) 7,405,616
Infrastructure 6,605,451 214,644 - 6,820,095
Total accumulated depreciation and
amortization 26,236,654 2,151,170 (327,124) 28,060,700
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 88,551,123 (241,670) (134,519) 88,174,934
Governmental activines capital assets, net  § 92,027,760 § 4413775 § (716,982 95,724,553

Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to functions of the Town as follows:

Governmental Acuvites:
General government
Public saferty
Public works
Recreation and leisure
Education
Total deprecianon and amoruzauon expense -

governmental acuvities
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NOTE D - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Capital asset actvity for business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2012 consisted of the following:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-type Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 1,127,031 § - $ - $ 1,127,031
Construction 1n progress 385,859 343,428 - 729,287
Toural capital assets, not being depreciate 1,512,890 343,428 - 1,856.318
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 18,561,981 236,373 - 18,798,354
Distribution and collection systems 51,487,323 - - 51,487,323
Machinery and equipment 12,274,147 10,669 (10,600) 12,274,216
Total capital assets, being depreciated 82,323,451 247,042 (10,600) 82,559,893
Less accumulated depreciation and amorunzation for:
Buildings and improvements 5,267,236 367,537 - 5,634,773
Distribution and collection systems 14,647,258 770,043 - 15,417,301
Machinery and equipment 6,032,213 423917 (6,948) 6,449,182
Total accumulated depreciation and
amortization 25,946,707 1,561,497 (6,948) 27,501,256
Total capital assets, being depreciated, n 56,376,744 (1,314,455) (3,652) 55,058,637

Business-type activities capital assets, ne $57,889,634  § (971,027) § (3,652) $ 56,914,955

Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to programs of the Town as follows:

Business-type Acuviges:
Sewer department § 1,282,608
Water department 278,889
Total depreciaton and amortizanon expense -
business-type acuviues § 1,561,497
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NOTE E - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2012 are as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

Governmental Funds:
General Fund Nonmajor governmental funds $ 564,408
Bonded Projects Fund 1,519,295
Water Department 1,019
2,084,722
Public Safety Building Fund General Fund 3,201,185
Nonmajor governmental funds General Fund 966,365
Nonmajor governmental funds 252,531
1,218,896
$ 6,504,803

Proprietary Funds:

Internal Service Fund General Fund $ 5,610,089
Sewer Department General Fund 52,367
Water Department Sewer Department 34,556
$ 5,697,012

The above balances resulted from the tme lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or
remmbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments between
funds are made.

Interfund advances outstanding as of June 30, 2012 were as follows:

Advanced From: Advanced To: Amount
General Fund Sewer Department $ 780,022

The advances made from the General Fund related to advances to cover operational expenses for the sewer
department. It is anticipated that none of the amount due to the General Fund from the Sewer Department will be
repaid within one year, and therefore, this balance due has been presented as advance to/from other fund in the
accompanying governmental funds balance sheet and propuetary funds statement of net assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Consinued)
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NOTE F - INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2012 consisted of the following:

Transfers In Transfers Out Amount
General Fund Sewer Department $ 10,000
Internal Service Fund 96,903
Total transfers $ 106,903

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund that
statute or budget requires to expend them, and (2) move unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to
finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.
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June 30, 2012

NOTE G - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The following is a summary of changes in long-term habilities for the year ended June 30, 2012:

Governmental Activities

Bonds payable:
General obligation bonds
Bond antcpaton notes
Unamortized premium
Deferred amounts on refunding
Total bonds payable
Other labilites:
Note payable
Compensated absences
Early reurement incentive
Litugation judgments
Landfill closure

Business-type Activities

Bonds payable:
Sewer bonds
Bond anticipation notes
Unamortized premmum
Deferred amounts on refunding

Tortal bonds payable

Other liabilites:
Contract payable
Compensated absences

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year
$ 38,197,600 $ - $ (2,645,000)  § 35,552,600 $ 3,093,400
- 10,625,000 - 10,625,000 -
578,687 - (41,335) 537,352 -
(617,392) - 44,100 (573,292) -
38,158,895 10,625,000 (2,642,235) 46,141,660 3,093,400
117,999 - (117,999) - -
2,025,532 39,083 (330,077) 1,734,538 346,900
264,507 71,641 (158,879) 177,269 95,941
550,000 - - 550,000 -
247,000 - (19,000) 228,000 19,000
$ 41,363,933 $ 10,735,724 $ (3,268,190)  $ 48,831,467 $ 3,555,241
$ 1,777,400 $ - §  (355,000) § 1,422,400 $ 176,600
- 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 -
130,521 - (9,323) 121,198 -
(5,665) - 405 (5,260) -
1,902,256 1,500,000 (363,918) 3,038,338 176,600
2,295,018 - (217,945) 2,077,073 218,261
49115 - (5,920) 43195 8,639
$ 4,246,389 $ 1,500,000 $  (587,783) § 5,158,606 § 403,500

Long - term labilities above typically have been liquidated by the General Fund for governmental activities and the

Water and Sewer Funds for business-type activities.
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NOTE G- LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

General Obligation Bonds and Notes Pavable

A summary of general obligation bonds and note payable outstanding at June 30, 2012 1s as follows:

Date of Original Interest Maturity Amount
Purpose of Bonds Issue Issue Rates Date Outstanding
Governmental Activities
Bonds Payable
General Obligaton Bonds 1988 $ 7,310,000 6.25% - 7.0% 2015 $ 650,000
General Obligaton Bonds 1994 7,475,000 2.75% - 5.5% 2014 375,000
General Obligation Bonds 2001 4,497,000 4.0% - 5.0% 2013 225,000
General Obligaton Bonds 2004 10,070,000 2.5% - 4.5% 2024 3,330,000
General Obliganon Bonds 2006 10,000,000 3.625% - 5.0% 2027 6.830,000
General Obligaton Bonds 2007 6,300,000 3.7% - 4.5% 2028 4,095,000
General Obliganon Bonds 2009 12,000,000 2.0% - 4.0% 2024 10,000,000
General Obligation Bonds 2010 2,212,600 2.0% - 4.0% 2022 2,157,600
General Obliganon Bonds 2010 8,035,000 3.0% - 5.0% 2025 7,890,000
$ 35,552,600
Business-type Activities
Bonds Payable
General Obliganon Bonds 1999 1,350,000 6.60% 2019 $ 490,000
General Obligation Bonds 2010 1,042,400 2.0% - 4.0% 2019 932,400
$ 1,422,400

Annual debt service requirements to maturity on general obligation bonds and the note payable are as follows as of

June 30, 2012:

Year ending Governmental Activities
June 30: Principal Interest Total

2013 3,093,400 b 1,275,300 $ 4,368,700
2014 3,049,000 1,161,752 4,210,752
2015 2,854,000 1,055,995 3,909,995
2016 2,647,700 958,889 3,606,589
2017 2,642,700 874,482 3,517,182
2018-2022 13,100,800 2,923,064 16,023,864
2023-2027 7,850,000 667,174 8,517,174
2028 315,000 6,300 321,300

35,552,600 $ 8,922,956 $ 44 475,556




TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2012

NOTE G - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Contnued)

General Obligation Bonds and Notes Pavable (Continued)

Year ending Business-type Activities
June 30: Principal Interest Total

2013 $ 176,600  $ 61,432 % 238,032
2014 211,000 52,393 263,393
2015 211,000 43,543 254,543
2016 207,300 35,454 242,754
2017 207,300 26,200 233,500
2018-2019 409,200 23,091 432291

$ 1,422400  § 242113 § 1,664,513

Bond Anticipation Notes

During August 2011, the Town issued $12,125,000 bond anticipation notes. The proceeds were used to fund
various capital costs, including a sewer project, the construction of the public safety building, and to fund part of
the deficit in the Bonded Projects Fund remaining from various school construction projects. Subsequent to
year-end, the bond anticipation notes were retired with the 1ssuance of general obligation bonds, and as such, have
been included with long-term habilities (see Noze M).

Refundings

On February 10, 2010, the Town issued $11,290,000 in general obligation bonds with an average interest rate of
2.54% to refund outstanding bonds with an average rate if 3.94%. The bonds refunded were as follows:
$1,170,000 of outstanding 1999 general obhgation bonds, $2,150,000 of outstanding 2001 general obhgation
bonds, $3,910,000 of outstanding 2004 general obligation bonds, $1,050,000 of outstanding 2006 general
obligation bonds, §945,000 of 2007 general obligation bonds, and $2,000,000 of 2009 general obligation bonds.
The net proceeds of $11,937,068 (after payment of expenses of $164,456) were deposited with an escrow agent mn
an irrevocable trust fund. The proceeds were used to buy a portfolio of direct obligations of, or obligations
guaranteed by the United States of America, to provide all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds.
The refunded bonds are considered defeased and the hability for those bonds have been removed from the
Statement of Net Assets. The transactions generated a cash flow savings of $456,175 and a present value savings
of $370,086.

At June 30, 2012, there 1s approximately $8.7 million of bonds are defeased but still outstanding.
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NOTE G - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

General Obligation Bonds and Notes Pavable (Continued)

School Bond Reimbursements

The State of Connecticut reimburses the Town for eligible school bond principal and nterest costs. The amount
of reimbursement for the year ended June 30, 2012 was §147,839. No additonal reimbursements of principal and
interest for this project are expected to be received. In addition, there are several open school construction
projects, for which $1,710,785 has been recorded as receivable in the Bonded Projects Fund.

Legal Debt Limit

Connecticut General Statutes Section 7-374(b) provides that debt of the Town shall not exceed seven times base
receipts, as defined in the Statute, or $237,242,467 as of June 30, 2012. Further, the Statute limits the amount of
debt that may be authorized by the Town for general purposes, schools, sewers, urban renewal and pension
deficit. The Town did not exceed any of the statutory debt limutations at June 30, 2012.

Authorized, Unissued Bonds

As of June 30, 2012, the Town had authorized but unissued bonds totaling $4,600,500.

Early Retirement Incentive

The Board of Education provides early reurement incentive benefits to 8 former employees. Benefits are paid
annually based on the retirement agreement for each employee. Benefits are payable through 2016. The amount
paid from general fund approprations during the year ended June 30, 2012 was §158,879.

Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Care Costs

State and Federal laws and regulations require that the Town place a final cover on its landfill and perform certain
maintenance and monutoring functons at the landfill site for thirty years after closure. In addition to operating
expenses related to current activities of the landfill, an expense provision and related hability are bemng recognized
based on the future closure and post-closure care costs that will be incurred near or after the date the landfill no
longer accepts waste. The recognition of these landfill closure and post-closure care costs is based on the amount
of the landfill used during the year. The esumated hability for landfill post-closure care costs 1s $228,000 as of
June 30, 2012, which is based on 100% usage of the landfill. The estimated total current cost of the landfill
closure and post-closure care 1s based on the amount that would be paid if all equipment, facilities and services
required to close, monitor and maintamn the landfill were acquired as of June 30, 2012. However, post-closure
care may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology or changes in landfill laws and regulations.

Contract Payable

The Town has entered into a long-term contract with the Mohegan Tribal Utlity Authority in connection with its
portion of costs from a Regional Water Extension Project. Such amount payable totals $2,077,073, of which
$754,540 1s owed by the Town and $1,322,533 is owed by other parties. The Town has recorded $1,309,583 as a
recewvable as of June 30, 2012, as the Town 1s collecung the debt payments to be remitted per terms of the
agreement. The maturity date of the entire contract 1s September 2018.
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NOTE H - UNEARNED/DEFERRED REVENUE

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to
be available to liquidate liabiities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recogniton in
connecuon with resources that have been recewed, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the
various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue reported mn the governmental funds were as follows:

Unavailable Unearned Total
General Fund:
Property taxes and accrued interest on delinquent property taxes $ 2922077 - § 2922077
Assessments and accrued interest on delinquent assessment charges 276,920 - 276,920
Other receivables 41,234 - 41,234
Bonded Projects Fund:
School building construction grant recervables 1,710,785 - 1,710,785
Nonmajor Governmental Funds:
Grant drawdowns prior to meeting all eligibility requirements - 51,984 51,984
$ 4,951,016 51,984 $ 5,003,000

NOTE I - RETIREMENT PLANS

Connecticut Municipal Emplovees’ Retirement Fund B

Plan Description and Benefit Provisions

All full-ume employees of the Town, except for certified board of education personnel and firefighters, who are
age 55 or younger at the date of hire, parucipate 1n the Connecticut Municipal Employees” Retirement Fund B
(MERF), a cost sharing muluple-employer public employee rearement system (PERS) established by the State of
Connecticut and administered by the State Retirement Commussion to provide retirement and disability benefits,
with annual cost of hiving adjustments and death benefits to the employees and beneficiaries of participating
municipalities.  Annual cost of living increases between 3% and 5% are paid to disabled members and
nondisabled retired members which have reached age 65. All benefits vest after 5 years of continuous service or
15 years of active aggregate service. Vested members who retire after age 55 or after 25 years of service,
wrrespective of age, are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life. Chapter 113, Part I of
the General Statutes of Connecticut, which can be amended by legislative action, establishes PERS benefits,
member contribution rates, and other plan provisions. MERF 1s considered to be a part of the State of
Connecticut financial reporting entity and is included i1n the State’s financial reports as a pension trust fund.
Those reports may be obtained by wnting to the State of Connectcut, Office of the State Comprroller, 55 Elm

Street, Hartford, Connecticut 06106 or by calling (860) 702-3480.
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NOTE I - RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

Connecticut Municipal Employees’ Retirement Fund B (Continued)

Contributions

Plan members are required by State Statute to contribute 2-1/4% of earnings upon which Social Security tax is
paid plus 5% of earnings on which no Social Security tax is paid. Fach participating municipality is required to
contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rate 1s 11.56% of the annual Town employee covered
payroll and 16.37% of the annual Police Department covered payroll. The contribution requirements of the
Town are established and may be amended by the State Retirement Commission. The Town’s contributions to
the MERF for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were $652,260, $612,864, and $466,531,
respecuvely, and were equal to the required contributons for each year.

Teacher’ Retirement System

The faculty and professional personnel of the Board of Education participate in a contributory defined benefit plan,
established under Chapter 167a of the Connecucut General Statutes, which 1s administered by the Connecticut State
Teachers” Retirement Board.

Certain part-time and all full-time certified teachers are eligible to participate in the plan and are required to
contribute 7.25% of their annual earnings to the plan. The Town does not and is not legally responsible to
contribute to the plan. After five years of service, teachers are fully vested in their own contributions. After ten
years of service, teachers are fully vested in the monthly pension benefit which is payable at the age of sixty. The
State of Connecticut contributes based on actuanally determined amounts. The funding level was determined based
on an actuarial valuation of the plan as a whole, which does not provide actuarial information on an individual Town
basis. For the year ended June 30, 2012, Town teachers conuibuted $1,302,852 to the plan and covered payroll for
the year was $17,970,374.

In accordance with the provisions of Governmental Accountng Standards Board Statement No. 24, the Town has
reported “on behalf” payments of $3,691,115 made by the State of Connecticut into the plan as intergovernmental
revenues and education expenditures of the General Fund in the accompanying statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances of governmental funds.

NOTE ] - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Plan Description

The Town of Montville administers an Other Post-Employment Benefits Plan (the “Plan”), which 1s a single-
employer defined benefit healthcare plan. The Plan provides healthcare insurance benefits for eligible retirees and
their spouses through the Town’s group health insurance plan, which covers both acuve and retired members, as
well as certam life insurance benefits. Benefit provisions are established through negotiations between the Town
and the unions representng Town employees and are renegotiated each bargaining period. The Plan does not
issue a publicly available financial report and is not included in the financial statements of another entity.
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NOTE J - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)
Funding Policy

Contributon requirements of the plan members and the Town are established in the Plan document and may be
amended through negotatons between the Town and the unions. The Town finances the Plan on a pay-as-you-
go basis. Currently, the Town contrbutes the following for various classes of employees covered:

Town Employees: Public works and dispatch employees are eligible to receive health benefits for self and spouse.
Normal reurement 1s the earlier of age 55 with 25 years of service, or age 65 with 10 years of service. Individuals
receiving benefits contribute 100% of their premium costs.

Board of Education Administrators:  Admuimstrators receiving benefits are required to contribute 50% of their
premium costs. Adminsstrators are eligible for benefits upon retirement and 20 years of service regardless of age.

Board of Education Teachers: Teachers retiring under the Connecticut State Teachers Retirement system are eligible
to recetve health benefits for self and spouse. Normal retirement for teachers is the earher of age 60 with 20 years
of services, or completion of 35 years of service regardless of age. Individuals receiving benefits contribute 100%
of their premium costs.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The Town’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution (“ARC”), an
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a
level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilites over a pertod not to exceed thirty years. The Town’s annual OPEB cost 1s enurely
attributed to an wmplicit rate subsidy, whereby retirees are considered to be receiving a benefit from the Town for
access to premium rates offered to the Town’s acuve employees. The following table shows the components of the

Town’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes i the Town’s net
OPEB obligation.

Annual required contribution b 112,204
Interest on net OPEB obligation -
Adjustment to annual required contribution -
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 112,204
Contributions made 112,204
Increase 1 net OPEB obligation -
Net OPEB obligaton, beginning of year -
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ -
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NOTE | - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The Town’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for the past three years 1s as follows:

Percentage of

Year Ended Annual Annual OPEB Net OPEB
June 30 OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
2010 $ 114,884 100.0%  § -
2011 121,080 100.0% -
2012 112,204 100.0% -

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan as of July 1, 2010 (the date of the most recent actuarial valuation) was as follows:

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued (Unfunded) Percentage of
Value of Liability (AAL) - AAL Funded Covered Covered
Assets Entry Age Actuarial (UAAL) Rato Payroll Payroll
(A) Cost Method (B) (B-A) (A/B) (©®) (B-A)/C)
$ - $ 823,001 § (823,001) 0.0% N/A N/A

The projection of future benefit payments for an ongomg plan involves estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of events 1n the future. Examples include assumpuons about
future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost rend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of
the plan and the annual required contributons of the Town are subject to continual revision, as actual results are
compared with past expectanons and new estimates are made about the future. The schedules of funding
progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI) following the notes to the financial statements,
present multyear trend mformation about whether the actuartal value of plan assets 1s increasing or decreasing
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

-53.



TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2012

NOTE J - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projecuons of benefits are based on the substanuve plan (the plan as understood by the Town and plan members)
and mclude the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefit costs berween
the Town and the plan members to that point. The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does
not explicitly incorporate the potental effects of legal or contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost
sharing between the Town and plan members in the future. Actuanal calculations reflect a long-term perspectve
and employ methods and assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term volatlity in actuarial accrued
Liabdives and the actuartal value of assets. Significant methods and assumptions were as follows:

Valuation date: July 1, 2010
Actuarial cost method: Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization method: Level Dollar Amount, Closed
Remaining amoruzaton pertod: 8.29 years
Asset valuation method: N/A
Actuartal assumptions:

Inflaton rate 2.50%

Interest rate 4.00%

Healthcare cost trend rate 8.0% inirial

5.00% final

NOTE K - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, thefts of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors or
omisstons; injuries to employees or acts of God for which the Town carries commercial insurance. During 2011,
deductibles paid by the Town were insignificant. Neither the Town nor its insurers have settled any claims which
exceeded the Town’s insurance coverage during the past three years. There have been no significant reductions in any
mnsurance coverage from amounts in the prior year.

The Health Insurance Fund, an internal service fund, was established to account for and finance employee medical
benefits claims for eligible full-ume emplovees of both the Town and the Board of Education. The Town retains the
risk of loss under the plan. A third party processes the claims filed under the self-insured health plan, for which the
Town 1s charged an admunistratuve fee. The Town has purchased a stop-loss policy for total claims in any one year
exceeding an aggregate of 125% of expected claims and for individual claims exceeding $125,000 for combined
hospital and major medical.

The Town establishes claims Liabilities based on estimates of claims that have been incurred but not reported at june
30, 2012. Claims labilities are recorded in accordance with GASB Statements No. 10 and 30, which require that a
liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that 1t 1s
possible that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of possible loss can be
reasonably estimated. The amount of the claims accrual is based on the ultimate costs of settling the claims, which
include past experience data, inflation and other future economic and societal factors and incremental claim
adjustment expenses, net of estimated subrogation recovertes. The claims accrual does not include other allocated or
unallocated claims adjustment expenses.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continned)
June 30, 2012

NOTE K - RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

A summary of claims actvity for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2012 1s as follows:

Claims Payable, Claims and Claims Payable,
Year Ended Beginning of Changes in Claims End of
June 30 Year Estimates Paid Year
2011 $ 436,270 $ 5,671,529 $ 5,611,801 $ 495,998
2012 495,998 5,696,162 5,754,988 437172

The Town currently insures its Property and Liability exposures with Argonaut Insurance Company, a member of
Argo Group. Argonaut Insurance Company specializes in Public Entity Insurance. It is an admitted carrier mn the
State of Connecticut and has an AM Best raung of A (Excellent) and a Financial Size Category of XII (§1Billion to
$1.25 Billion). The program is fully insured and the Town and the Town does not retain any risk of loss.

The Town purchases commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including blanket and umbrella. Coverage has
not been materially reduced, nor have settled claims exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three years.

NOTE L - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

There are several lawsuits pending against the Town. For certain of these cases, where it is probable that a liability
has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estumated, a loss contungency has been accrued for
$550,000. The Town's management believes it has meritorious defenses against these lawsuits and estimates that
potential claims against the Town, not covered by msurance, resulting from such litigation would not have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Town.

The Town has received state and federal grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the grantor
agencies. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursement to the grantor agency for any expenditure disallowed
under terms of the grant. Based on prior experience, Town management believes such disallowances, if any, will not
be material.

The Town may be subject to rebate penalties to the federal government relating to various bond and note issues. The
Town expects such amounts, if any, to be immateral.

As of June 30, 2012, the Town has recorded $2,618,713 in encumbrances. Such encumbrances have been mcluded as
part of the assigned fund balance designation in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54.

NOTE M - SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In August 2012, the $12,125,000 bond anticipation notes matured and were retired with proceeds from the issuance
of general obligation bonds. The $12,125,000 general obligation bonds 1ssued bear interest rates of 2.125%-4.0%
and mature in August 2032.
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NOTE N - RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The GASB has issued several new accounting standards that will become effective in future years. Management 1s
currently evaluating the effect implementation of these standards, as applicable, will have on 1ts financial statements. A
summary of recently issued accounting standards that will become effectve in future years 1s as follows:

In December 2010, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued GASB Statement No. 62,
Codification of Accounting and Financial Reportung Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and
AICPA Pronouncements. Statement No. 62 mcorporates mto the GASB authoritative literature certain accounting
and financial reporting guidance that is included in FASB Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles
Board Opinions and Accounting Research Bulletins of the AICPA Committee on Accounting Procedure that were
issued on our before November 30, 1989 that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The
provisions of GASB 62 are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2011 and early
adoption 1s permitted.

The GASB has issued GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reportng of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, which provides a new statement of net position format to report all assets,
deferred outflows of resources, habilities, deferred mflows of resources, and net positon (which is the net residual
amount of the other elements). GASB 63 requires that deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources be reported separately from assets and liabilites. GASB 63 also amends certain provisions of GASB
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis -- for State and Local
Governments, and related pronouncements to reflect the residual measure in the statement of financial position as net
positon, rather than net assets. The provisions of GASB 63 are effective for financial statements for periods beginning
after December 15, 2011 and early adoption 1s permuitted.

The GASB has issued GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, which clarifies the
approprate reportung of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources to ensure consistency in
financial reporting. GASB Concepts Statement (CON) No. 4, Elements of Financal Statements, specifies that
recognition of deferred outflows and deferred inflows should be limited to those instances specifically identified 1n
authoritative GASB pronouncements. Consequently, guidance was needed to determine which balances being
reported as assets and liabilities should actually be reported as deferred outflows of resources or deferred mflows of
resources, according to the definitions in CON 4. Based on those definitions, GASB 65 reclassifies certain items
currently being reported as assets and habilities as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. In
addition, GASB 65 recognizes certamn items currently being reported as assets and habilities as outflows of resources
and inflows of resources. The provisions of GASB 65 are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2012 and
early adoption 1s permitted.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections — 2012, which amends GASB Statement No. 62,
Codificaion of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contamned m Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and
AICPA Pronouncements, by modifying the specific guidance on accounting for 1) operating lease payments that vary
from a straight-line basts, 2) the difference between the ininal mnvestment (purchase price) and the principal amount of
a purchased loan or group of loans, and 3) servicing fees related to mortgage loans that are sold when the stated
service fee rate differs significantly from a current (normal) servicing fee rate. These changes would eliminate any
uncertainty regarding the application of GASB Statement No. 13, Accounting for Operating Leases with Scheduled
Rent Increases, and result in guidance that 1s consistent with the requirements in GASB Statement No. 48, Sales and
Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues and Intra-Enuty Transfers of Assets and Future Revenues. The
provisions in GASB 66 are effective for periods beginnng after December 15, 2012 and early adoption is permitted.
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NOTE N - RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The GASB has issued Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans - An amendment of GASB Statement
No. 25, which replaces the requirements of GASB Statement No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension
Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and GASB Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as
they relate to pension plans that are administered through trusts or similar arrangements meeting certain criteria.
GASB 67 builds upon the existng framework for financial reports of defined benefit pension plans, which includes a
statement of fiduciary net position (the amount held 1 a trust for paying retirement benefits) and a statement of
changes in fiduciary net positon. GASB 67 enhances note disclosures and required supplementary informaton for
both defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans. The provisions in GASB 67 are effecuve for financal
statements for pertods beginning after June 15, 2013 and early adoption is permutted.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 68, Accounung and Financial Reporting for Pensions - An Amendment of
GASB Statement No. 27, which replaces the requirements of GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by
State and Local Governmental Employers, and GASB Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to
governments that provide pensions through pension plans administered as trusts or similar arrangements that meet
certamn criteria. GASB 68 requires governments providing defined benefit pensions to recognize their long-term
obligation for pension benefits as a liability for the first time, and to more comprehensively and comparably measure
the annual costs of pension benefits. GASB 68 also enhances accountability and transparency through revised and new
note disclosures and required supplementary informaton. The provisions i GASB 68 are effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2014 and early adoption is permutted.
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS

JUNE 30, 2012

Other Post Emplovment Benefits Program

Actuarial UAALasa
Actuanal Accrued Unfunded Percentage of
Acruanal Value of Liability (AAL) - AAL Funded Covered Covered
Valuauon Assets Entry Age normal (UAAL) Rauo Payroll Payroll
Date (3) ® (B-2) (A/B) © (B-2)/C)
July 1,2008 § $ 924,746 $ 924.746 0.0% N/A N/A
July 1, 2010 - 823,001 823,001 0.0% N/A N/A
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Variance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Original Final Acrtual Over (Under)
PROPERTY TAXES
Revenues from property taxes $ 35,167,314 $  33,167.314 33,622,883 $ (1,544,431)
Telephone access 60.369 60,369 61,730 1,361
Interest and lien fees 314.000 314,000 303,181 (10.819)
Total property taxes 35,541,683 35,541,683 33,987,794 (1,553,889)
INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES
State grants for school aid:
ECS grant 12,549,531 12,549,531 12,570,109 20,578
Transportauon 364,464 364,464 306,916 (57,548)
Special education 170,000 170,000 436,157 266,157
Adult education 32174 32,174 32,449 275
Reimbursement middle school bond 147.838 147,838 147,839 1
Total state grants for school aid 13,264.007 13,264,007 13,493 470 229,463
State grants unspecified:
In Lieu of taxes - State property 842,349 842,349 845,862 3,513
Emergency management program 9,000 9,000 9,806 806
Tax rebef for eldertly 71,993 71,993 106,034 34,041
Tax relief for disabled 3,000 3,000 2,944 (56)
Tax relief for veterans 4,706 4,706 7,409 2,703
Manufacturers assistance grant 350,000 350,000 646,613 296,613
Other grants 25,000 25,000 56,030 31,030
CT Fines reimbursement 12,000 12,000 19,405 7,405
Elect restrucruning grant 334,580 334.580 343,840 9.260
Pequot funds 1,748.534 1,748,534 1,838,096 89,562
State boat grant 8,000 8,000 - (8,000)
FEMA grant - - 57,812 57,812
Toral state grants unspecified 3,409.162 3,409.162 3,933,851 524.689
Total mntergovernmental revenues 16.673,169 16,673,169 17,427,321 754,152
CHARGES FOR SERVICES
Licenses and permits:
Conveyance tax 91,000 91.000 71,442 (19,558)
Town clerk fees 110,000 110,000 114,948 4948
Dog licenses 1,500 1,500 22,511 21,011
Dog warden 1.000 1.000 1,945 945
Building department 128,000 128,000 159,196 31,196
Miscellaneous permuits 9.000 9,000 10,864 1,864
Fire permuts - - 903 903
Transfer staton 232,000 232,000 211,993 (20,007)
Total licenses and permits 572,500 572,500 593,802 21,302
Revenue from other agencies:
Planming and zomng and zoning
board of appeals 5,000 5,000 8,716 3,716
Parks and recreauons 67,070 67,070 83,256 16,186
Camp oakdale rent 2,200 2.200 2,785 585
Fair oaks facility rental 500 500 300 (200)
Housing authonty 25,000 25,000 28,273 3,273
Youth service program 30,806 30,806 31,434 628
Total revenue from other agencies 130,576 130,576 154,764 24.188
(Continned)
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS - GENERAL FUND (Concluded)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

CHARGES FOR SERVICES (Continned)
Charges for current services:
Use of property
Tuwtion regular
Tutton special education
School miscellaneous revenue
Personal property audits
Public works department
Commercial tipping fees
Assessor's office
Total charges for current services

Miscellaneous:

St. Bernard's health service

Police rexmbursement

Insurance reimbursement

Millstone reimbursement

Fire marshal prvate duty

All other miscellaneous

Sale of assets

Bond premium

Mohegan contributions

WPCA rental

Engineening review rexmbursement
Total miscellaneous

Total charges for services

REVENUE FROM USE OF TOWN MONEY

Investment interest
Sewer assessments
Water assessments

Total revenue from use of Town money

Total revenues

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Cancellation of pnor year encumbrances
Appropnation of fund balance
Transfers 1n - Internal Service Fund
Transfers in - WPCA Financial Services

Total other financing sources

Total revenues and other
other financing sources

Variance With

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Original Final Actual Over (Under)
500 500 - $ (500)
125,000 125,000 106,177 (18,823)
150,000 150,000 127,134 (22,866)
5,000 5,000 1,766 (3.234)
789,935 789,935 43 464 (746,471)
1,500 1,500 384 (1,116)
415,000 415,000 379,472 (335,528)
2,000 2,000 1,171 (829)
1,488,935 1,488,935 659,568 (829.367)
12,194 12,194 17,747 5,553
170,000 170,000 130,891 (39,109)
20,000 20,000 24972 4,972
15,000 15,000 15,918 918
5,000 5,000 - (5,000)
50,000 50,000 20,908 (29,092)
100,000 100,000 14,000 (86,000)
58,298 58,298 21,429 (36,869)
500,000 500,000 500,000 -
11,000 11,000 11,000 -
1,000 1,000 - (1,000)
942,492 942,492 756,865 (185,627)
3,134,503 3,134,503 2,164,999 (969,504)
45,000 45,000 49314 4,314
145,000 145,000 190,384 45384
11,750 11,750 805 (10,945)
201,750 201,750 240,503 38,753
55,551,105 55,551,105 53,820,617 (1,730,488)
- - 48,927 48,927
41,250 49,750 - (49,750)
- - 96,903 96,903
10,000 10,000 10,000 -
51,250 59,750 155,830 96,080
55,602,355 55,610,855 53,976,447  $ (1,634,408)
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Variance With

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Original Final Actual Over (Under)
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Mayor:
Human services $ 114,104 $ 114,054 111,725 $ (2,329)
Contracrual services 48,185 47,436 42,642 (4,794)
Commodiues 5,300 6,099 4,997 (1,102)
Total mayor 167.589 167,589 159,364 (8,225)
Town council:
Human services 21,500 23,400 23,399 1
Commodities 7,750 17,318 13,424 (3,894)
Total town council 29.250 40,718 36,823 (3,895)
Town attorney 340,000 370,000 355,495 (14,505)
Town hall / central services:
Human services 5,000 5,000 3,227 (1,773)
Contractual services 142,250 141,750 127,077 (14,673)
Commodites 53,500 54,000 53,380 (620)
Capital 1,000 1,000 596 (404)
Total town hall / central services 201,750 201,750 184,280 (17,470)
Probate court: 12,000 12,000 11,923 T7)
Finance department:
Human services 532,790 524212 522,593 (1,619)
Contractual services 156,000 167,578 166,680 (898)
Commodities 10,600 10,600 6,955 (3,645)
Tortal finance department 699,390 702,390 696,228 (6,162)
Insurance and taxes 3,352,455 3.352,455 3,275,364 (77,091)
Board of assessment appeals:
Human services 1,000 1,305 1,305 -
Commodiues 600 295 200.00 (95)
Total board of assessment appeals 1,600 1,600 1,505 (95)
Auditor 225,500 225,500 225,500 -
Other 170,000 73,132 46,881 (26,251)
Town clerk:
Human services 122,762 123,232 123,214 (18)
Contractual services 150 150 130 (20)
Commodities 21,900 21,430 12,432 (8,998)
Total town clerk 144,812 144,812 135,776 (9,036)
(Continned)
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS - GENERAL FUND (Conttnued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued)
Registrar of voters:
Human services
Contractual services
Commodites
Total registrar of voters

Elections / referendum:
Contractual services
Commodites
Toral elections / referendum

Land use department:
Human services
Contractual services
Commodites
Caprtal
Total land use department

Inlands wetlands commusston:
Human services
Commodities
Tortal inland wetlands commussion

Economic development commussion:
Human services
Commodities

Total economic development commission

Building board of appeals
Zoning board of appeals:

Sentor Center:
Human services
Contractual services
Commodities
Total sentor center

Youth services:
Human services
Contractual services
Commodities
Total youth services

Variance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Original Final Actual Over (Under)
) 35,900 36,036 36,036 § -
200 230 215 (15)
1,700 1,534 798 (736)
37,800 37,800 37,049 (751)
26,000 26,000 18,219 (7,781)
9,700 9,700 3,885 (5,815)
35,700 35,700 22,104 (13,596)
234,534 230,743 230,384 (359)
600 600 381 (219)
16,500 18,841 17,341 (1,500)
250 1,700 1,534 (166)
251,884 251,884 249,640 (2,244)
800 800 800 -
50 50 50 -
850 850 850 -
700 700 313 (387)
1,400 1,400 165 (1,235)
2,100 2,100 478 (1,622)
50 50 - (50)
600 600 544 (56)
141,550 141,146 140,962 (184)
33,500 32,917 31,605 (1,312)
13,115 14,102 13,804 (238)
188,165 188,165 186,431 (1,734)
142,394 142,964 142,959 (5)
42,925 43,525 42,900 (625)
5,480 4,510 4,346 (164)
190,799 190,999 190,205 (794)
(Continued)

- 62 -



TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS - GENERAL FUND (Contznued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Variance With

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Original Final Actual Over (Under)
GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continned)
Private duty $ 125,000 $ 125,000 $ 92,419 $ (32,581)
Building inspector
Human services 166,455 167,680 167,677 (3)
Contractual services 315 165 165 -
Commodities 2450 1,775 1.697 (78)
Capital 400 - - R
Total building inspector 169,620 169,620 169.539 (81)
School building commuttee: 300 300 34 (266)
Informaton technology
Human services 73,796 73,796 73,796 -
Contractual services 210,300 209,300 208,914 (3806)
Commodities 2,360 3,360 3,350 (10)
Total information technology 286.456 286,456 286,060 (396)
Total general government 6,633,670 6,581,470 6.364.492 (216,978)
PUBLIC SAFETY
Emergency management:
Human services 72,582 73,890 73,886 4)
Contractual services 15,000 13,812 13,183 (629)
Commodiues 3.285 3,165 1,650 (1,515)
Total emergency management 90.867 90,867 88,719 (2.148)
Police department:
Human services 1,721,418 1,779,005 1,778,999 (6)
Contractual services 130,000 141.192 137,611 (3.581)
Commodiues 48,995 46,900 306,256 (10,644)
Capatal 18,500 18,816 18,316 (500)
Total police department 1,918,913 1,985,913 1,971,182 (14,731)
Fire marshal:
Human services 81,049 82,752 82,491 (261)
Commodites 4.935 3.232 2,316 (916)
Total fire marshal 85,984 85,984 84,807 (1,177)
Anumal control:
Human services 52,155 50919 50,914 (5)
Contractual services 2,635 3,416 3,253 (163)
Commodites 4,260 4715 4.647 (68)
Total animal control 59,050 59,050 58,814 (236)
Public safety commussion:
Human services 1,650 3,002 3,001 M
Commodines 50,100 48,748 46,000 (2,748)
Total public satey commussion 51.750 51,750 49.001 (2,749)
(Continned)
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS - GENERAL FUND (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Variance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Original Final Actual Over (Under)
PUBLIC SAFETY (Continned)
Public safety building commussion: $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ -
Daspatch:
Human services 269,390 274,069 274,068 1
Commodities 6.050 3,171 3,131 (40)
Total dispatch 275,440 277,240 277199 (41)
Fire protection:
Human services 714,240 714,240 684.953 (29.287)
Contractual services 376,487 376,487 376,487 -
Commodites 74,820 74,820 63,315 (11,505)
Total fire protecnon 1,165,547 1,165,547 1,124,755 (40,792)
Public safety building:
Contractual services 47,500 51,814 51,279 (535)
Commodites 1.000 686 684 (2)
Total public safety building 48.500 52.500 51,963 (537)
Total public safety 3,697,051 3,769.851 3,707,440 (62,411)
PUBLIC WORKS
Public works:
Human services 1,202,307 1,147,174 1,144,472 (2,702)
Contractual services 573,550 462,812 428,249 (34,563)
Commodites 426,700 559,175 531,981 (27,194)
Capital 6,600 15.496 12,618 (2,878)
Total pubhic works 2209157 2,184,657 2,117,320 (67.337)
Camp oakdale:
Contractual services 46,300 43,423 41,873 (1.550)
Commodites 12,000 14,877 14,139 (738)
Total camp oakdale 58,300 58.300 56,012 (2.288)
Solid waste:
Human services 131,192 128,469 125333 (3,136)
Contractual services 889,250 888,122 829,539 (58,583)
Commodities 32,200 36,581 36,006 (575)
Capital 8.000 7.470 7.414 (56)
Total solid waste 1.060,642 1,060,642 998.292 (62,350)
Engineering services 105,000 105,000 98,166 (6,834)
Total public works 3,433.099 3,408,599 3.269,790 (138,809)
HEALTH AND WELFARE
Contractual services 177,448 180,590 180,589 )
Commodites 700 558 434 (124)
Total health and welfare 178,148 181,148 181,023 (125)
(Continued)
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS - GENERAL FUND (Concluded)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

SOCIAL SERVICES
Human services
Contractual services
Commodines
Toral social services

RECREATION AND LEISURE
Recreation.
Human services
Contractual services
Commodities
Caprtal
Total recreation

Fair oaks building

Parks and recreation commussion:
Human services
Commission
Total parks and recreauon commussion

Total recreation and letsure

MISCELLANEOUS
Donations to organizations
Commussion on aging
Total muscellaneous

EDUCATION

CAPITAL OUTLAY

DEBT SERVICE
Redempuon of debt - principal
Interest payments

Total debrt service

Total expenditures

Variance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Original Final Actual Over (Under)
$ 30,031 29,640 $ 28,460 $ (1,180)
2,650 2,951 2,558 (393)
550 640 555 (85)
33,231 33,231 31,573 (1,658)
194,079 191,092 186,816 (4,276)
765 870 760 (110)
27,760 30,435 25,646 (4,789)
600 807 357 (450)
223204 223204 213,579 (9,625)
32,800 42200 41,231 (969)
3,000 3,000 2,248 (752)
150 150 7 (123)
3,150 3,150 2,275 (875)
259,154 268,554 257,085 (11,469)
61,550 61,350 48,250 (13,300)
100 100 - (100)
61.650 61,650 48,250 (13,400)
36,632,735 36,632,735 36,617,890 (14,845)
561,200 561,200 316,461 (244,739)
2,645,000 2,645,000 2,645,000 -
1,467,417 1,467,417 1,403,666 (63,751)
4112417 4,112,417 4,048,666 (63,751)
55,602,355 55,610,855 54,842,670 (768,185)
(Concluded)
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Due to student groups
Due to others

Total liabilities

Total

Student Performance Agency

Activities Bonds Funds
$ 228,982 156,140 $ 385,122
11,193 - 11,193
$ 240,175 156,140 $ 396,315
$ 240,175 - $ 240,175
- 156,140 156,140
$ 240,175 156,140 $ 396,315
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Student Activities

Assets
Cash and cash equvalents
Investments
Total assets

Liabilities
Due to student groups
Total liabilives

Performance Bonds

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets
Liabilities
Due to others
Total liabilities

Total All Agency Funds

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Total assets

Liabilities
Due to student groups
Due to others
Total habilites

Balance, Balance,
July 1, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012

$ 225,783 ¥ 549,060 3 545,861 § 228,982
33,297 - 22,104 11,193

$ 259,080 $ 549,060 § 567,965 $ 240,175
$ 259,080 $ 549060 § 567,965 $ 240,175
$ 259,080 $ 549,060 § 567,965 $ 240,175
$ 345,070 § 3,000 § 191,930 $ 156,140
$ 345,070 $ 3,000 % 191,930 $ 156,140
§ 345,070 $ 3000 % 191,930 $ 156,140
$ 345070  § 3000 % 191,930 $ 156,140
$ 570,853 § 552,060  § 737,791 $ 385,122
33,297 - 22,104 11,193

$ 604,150  § 552,060  § 759,895 $ 396,315
$ 259,080 § 549,060  § 567,965 $ 240,175
345,070 3,000 191,930 156,140

$ 604,150 $ 552,060 § 759,895 $ 396,315

_81-



Federal and State Single Audit Reports

June 30, 2012
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Council
Town of Montville, Connecticut

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activites, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Montville, Connecticut (the
“Town’) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 28, 2013. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
established by the American Insttute of Certified Public Accountants and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States of America.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town’s internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal
contro] over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

A deficiency in internal control over financial reporting exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions,
to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, 1n internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Town’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Grant Thornton LLP
U.S. member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd



Our consideration of internal control would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in the Town’s internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was also no designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that
might be significant deficiencies. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over financial reporting that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance. We identified a certain deficiency in internal control over
financial reporting, described in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Findings and Questioned Costs as
item 2012-1,that we consider to be a significant deficiency in the Town’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town’s financial statements are free of matertal
misstatement, we performed tests of its comphance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

We did not audit the Town’s written response to the matters described in the accompanying Schedule of
Federal Findings and Questoned Costs and accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Town in a separate letter dated February 28,
2013.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Town Council and management of the
Town, federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

C.,W'T\\GM)&SH LLP

Glastonbury, Connecticut
February 28, 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON COMPLIANCE
RELATED TO MAJOR PROGRAMS (OMB CIRCULAR A-133) AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Council
Town of Montville, Connecticut

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Town of Montville, Connectcut (the “Town”) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budger (OMB) Circnlar A-133 Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Town’s major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2012. The Town’s major federal programs are identfied in the summary of auditors’ results
section of the accompanying Schedule of Federal Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the
responsibility of the Town’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Town’s
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States, and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the Town’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Town’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Town complied, in all materal respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and matenial effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2012.

Grant Thornton LLP
U.S. member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd



Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance
with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered the Town’s internal control over compliance with the requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program as a basis for designing audit procedures for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness of the
Town’s mnternal control over compliance. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a umely basis. A material
weakness 1s a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal contro} over compliance
that might be material weaknesses. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in the
Town’s mternal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that were not identified.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Finance and management of the Town,
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and 1s not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

Glastonbury, Connecticut
February 28, 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON THE SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Council
Town of Montwville, Connecticut

We have audited, 1n accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAS) established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the standards applicable to
financial audits contamned in Government Aunditing Standards 1ssued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
informaton of the Town of Montville, Connecticut (the “Town”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, and
our report dated February 28, 2013, expressed unqualified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was
performed for the purpose of forming our opinions on these financial statements that collectively comprise the

Town’s financial statements.

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards for the year ended June 30, 2012 1s presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Awudits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and 1s not a required part of the financial statements. Such
supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditng procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures. These additional procedures included comparing and reconciling the information directly to the
underlying accountng and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with US GAAS. In our opinion, the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards 1s fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a

whole.

G v Vhoeunten LLP

Glastonbury, Connecticut
February 28, 2013

Grant Thornton LLP
U.S. member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd



TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Federal
Grant CFDA
Grantor; Pass-Through Grantor; Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Direct:
National School Lunch Program - USDA Commodities - 10.555 34,571
Passed through the State of Connecticut Department of Education:
National School Breakfast Program 12060-SDE64370-20508 10.553 89.370
National School Lunch Program 12060-SDE64370-20560 10.555 320,057
409,427
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 443,998
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Passed through the State of Connecticut Department of Education:
Special Education - Grants to States 12060-SDE64370-20977 84.027 627,898
Special Education - Grants to States, Recovery Act 12060-SDE64370-29011 84.391 13,337
Special Education - Preschool Grants 12060-SDE64370-20983 84.173 15,307
656,542
Title I - Grants to Local Educational Agencies 12060-SDE64370-20679 84.010 115,318
Title IT - Part A Improving Teacher Quality 12060-SDEG64370-20858 84.367 82,056
Title III - Part A English Language Acquusition 12060-SDEG64370-20868 84.365 44234
Carl D. Perkins Vocational and Applied Technology 12060-SDEG64370-20742 84.048 22,733
Education Jobs Funds 12060-SDE64370-22405 84.410 622,147
Total U.S. Department of Education 1,543,030
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Passed through the State of Connecticut Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction, Recovery Act 12062-DOT57151-29016 20.205 90,786
Federal Highway Safety Grants 12062-DOT57513-20559 20.600 3,000
Alcohol Traffic Safety Grants 12062-DOT57513-22091 20.607 44,170
Safety Belt Performance Grant 12062-DOT57513-22093 20.609 2,500
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 140,456
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Passed through the State of Connecticut Department of Public Safety:
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 12060-DPS32985-21891 97.036 136,970
Emergency Management Performance Grant 12060-DPS32982-21881 97.042 9,806
Toral U.S. Department of Homeland Security 146,776
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
Passed through the State of Connecticut Department of Economic Development
Brownfields Assessment and Cleanup Cooperative Agreements 12060-ECD46440-21775 66.818 19,715
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
Passed through the State of Connecticut Office of Policy and Management:
Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant, Recovery Act 12060-OPM20810-29009 81.128 11,485
TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDED 2,305,460

The accompanying notes are a

n tntegral part of this schedule.

G-



TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE A - ACCOUNTING BASIS

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accounting policies of the Town of Montville, Connecticut conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental organizations.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards has been prepared on the accrual basis
consistent with the preparation of the basic financial statements. Information included in the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133,
Aundits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.

For cost reimbursement awards, revenues are recognized to the extent of expenditures. Expenditures
have been recognized to the extent the related obligation was incurred within the applicable grant period
and liquidated within 90 days after the end of the grant period.

For performance based awards, revenues are recognized to the extent of performance achieved during
the grant period.

Certain financial assistance is not dependent on expenditure activity or the achievement of performance
goals and, accordingly, is considered expended in the fiscal year of receipt. These financial assistance

program receipts are reflected in the expenditures column of the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards.

NOTE B - OTHER FEDERAL ASSISTANCE
The United States Department of Agriculture makes available commodities for donations to schools. An
amount of $34,571 is reflected in the expenditures column in the accompanying schedule of expenditures

of federal awards and represents the market value of such commodities received during the period.

No other federal assistance was received in the form of loans, loan guarantees or insurance.



TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
QO Material weakness(es) identified?

Q  Significant deficiency(ies) identified?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Q  Material weakness(es) identified?

Q  Significant deficiency(ies) identfied?

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in

accordance with Circular A-133, Section 510(a)?

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number

Unqualified

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes-

Ungqualified

Yes

Name of Federal Program

No

None
reported

No

No

None
reported

No

97.036
84.410
10.553/10.555

Public Assistance Grants
Education Jobs Funds
Child Nutridon Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

Finding 2012-1 Significant Deficiency in Year-end Close - WPCA

Criteria

v

Yes

The Water Pollution Control Authornty (“WPCA”) should have year-end closing procedures to ensure the
accounting records are maintained in conformity with accounting prnciples generally accepted in the United

States of America.



TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (Continued)

Finding 2012-1 Significant Deficiency in Year-end Close — WPCA (Continued)

Condition

Although certain reconciliations were performed, it was noted that not all accounts had been properly adjusted
as of year-end.

Effect

Audit adjustments were required to properly close out various accounts within the WPCA.

Cause

Prior year WPCA accounts were maintained by the Town. The transition of records in the current year led to
difficuldes in the year-end close.

Auditors’ Recommendation

We recommend that the WPCA develop and implement a comprehensive plan related to the year-end close of
all funds, to ensure that all accounts are reconciled and properly balanced.

Management Response

The Town and WPCA intend to take appropriate action in an attempt to remedy this deficiency in the future.

Additional assistance from Grant Thomton in the development of year-end closing procedures has been
scheduled for the spring.

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

No findings or questioned costs are reported.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF THE STATUS OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

Finding 2011-1 is resolved.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON COMPLIANCE
RELATED TO MAJOR PROGRAMS (CONNECTICUT STATE SINGLE AUDIT ACT) AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Council
Town of Montville, Connecticut

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Town of Montville, Connectcut (the “Town”) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the State of Connecticut, Office of Policy and Management Compliance
Supplement to the State Single Andit Act that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Town’s major state
programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. The Town’s major state programs are identfied in the summary of
auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of state findings and questioned costs. Compliance with
the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major state programs is the
responsibility of the Town’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Town’s
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the standards
applicable to financial audits contamned in Government Auditing Standards, 1ssued by the Comprroller General of the
United States, and State Single Audit Act (C.G.S. Sectdons 4-230 to 4-236). Those standards and the State Single
Audit Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
the Town’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our
audit does not provide a legal determination of the Town’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Town complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major state programs for the year ended June 30, 2012.

-10 -

Grant Thornton LLP
U.S. member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd



Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to state programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town’s internal control over compliance with the
requirements that could have a direct and matenal effect on a major state program as a basis for designing audit
procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion of the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program on a
timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in the Town’s internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that were not idenufied.

This report is intended solely for the informaton and use of the Town Council and management of the Town,

state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

G rouc Vveten LLP

Glastonbury, Connecticut
February 28, 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON THE SCHEDULE
OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Council
Town of Montville, Connecticut

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
(US GAAS) established by the American Insutute of Certified Public Accountants and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Town of Montville, Connecticut (the “Town”) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2012, and our report dated February 28, 2013, expressed unqualified opinions on those
financial statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming our opinions on these financial
statements that collectively comprise the Town’s financial statements.

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance for the year ended June 30, 2012 1s
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the State Single Audit Act (C.G.S. sections 4-230
to 4-236), and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such supplementary information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures. These additional
procedures included comparing and reconciling the information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with US GAAS. In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of State
Financial Assistance is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

G5 rou Theuten LLY

Glastonbury, Connecticut
February 28, 2013
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

State Grant

Program
Core - CT
State Grantor; Pass-Through Grantor; Program Title Number Expenditures
NONEXEMPT PROGRAMS
DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Direct:
Utrban Action Bonds 12060-ECD46440-41240 $ 700,000
OFFICE OF POLICY AND MANAGEMENT
Direct:
Local Capital Improvement Program 12050-OPM20600-40254 95,074
Payment in Lieu of Taxes on State-owned Property 11000-OPM20600-17004 842,695
Property Tax Relief for Elderly and Disabled Homeowners 11000-OPM20600-17018 106,034
Property Tax Relief for Veterans 11000-OPM20600-17024 7,409
Property Tax Relief for the Totally Disabled 11000-OPM20600-17011 2,944
Municipal Video Competition Trust Account 12060-OPM20600-35362 1,187
Total Office of Policy and Management 1,055,343
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Direct:
Magnet Schools 11000-SDE64370-17057 67,600
Adult Education 11000-SDE64370-17030 32,449
Afterschool Program 11000-SDE64370-17084 23,750
Health Food Initiative 11000-SDE64370-16212 24,048
Youth Services Bureau 11000-SDE64370-17052 18,264
Aid to Private Schools - Health Services 11000-SDEG64370-17034 17,747
Child Nutrition Sate Match 11000-SDE64370-16211 11,066
Youth Services Bureau - Enhancement 11000-SDE64370-16201 6,250
Bilingual Educaton 11000-SDE64370-17042 3,853
School Breakfast Match 11000-SDE64370-17046 17,100
Total Department of Education 222,127
CONNECTICUT STATE LIBRARY
Direct:
Preservation of Historic Documents 12060-CSL66094-35150 3,500
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Direct:
Town Aid Road Grants - Municipal 12001-DOT57131-17036 166,400
Bus Operatons 12001-DOT57931-12175 56,344
Total Department of Transportation 222744
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
Direct:
Nuclear Safety Fund CT Yankee 12060-DPS32984-30464 2,118
Nuclear Safety Fund Dominion 12060-DPS32984-30465 24 357
Total Department of Public Safety 26,475

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE (Continned)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

State Grant

Program
Core - CT
State Grantor; Pass-Through Grantor; Program Title Number Expenditures
NONEXEMPT PROGRAMS (Continued)
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Direct:
Clean Water Fund 21014-DEP43720-40001 $ 188,940
Community Conservation and Development 12052-DEP43570-43039 343,428
Nitrogen Credit Exchange Program 21016-OTT14230-42407 15,983
Total Department of Environmental Protection 548,351
DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES
Direct:
Small Town Economic Assistance Program 12052-DSS60783-40533 37,626
Total State Assistance Before Exempt Programs 2,816,166
EXEMPT PROGRAMS
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Direct:
Education Cost Sharing 11000-SDEG64370-17041 12,570,109
Commitments for School Construction - Principal 13010-SDE64370-40901 139,081
Commitments for School Constructton - Interest 13009-SDE64370-40896 8,758
Special Education: Excess Costs Student Based 11000-SDE64370-17047 436,157
Public School Transportation 11000-SDE64370-17027 224,879
Nonpublic School Transportation 11000-SDE64370-17049 14,437
Total Department of Education 13,393,421
OFFICE OF POLICY AND MANAGEMENT
Direct:
Municipal Revenue Sharing 12060-OPM20600-35458 646,613
Mashantucket Pequot Grant 12009-OPM20600-17005 1,838,096
Total Office of Policy and Management 2,484,709
Total Exempt Programs 15,878,130
TOTAL STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE $ 18,694,296

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.

S 14 -




TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Various departments and agencies of the State of Connecticut have provided financial assistance to the Town
through grants and other authorizations in accordance with the General Statutes of the State of Connecticut.
These financial assistance programs fund several programs of the Town.

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the Town of Montville, Connecticut conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental organizations. The following is a
summary of the more significant policies relating to the aforementioned grant programs.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance has been prepared on the accrual
basis consistent with the preparation of the basic financial statements. Information included in the
schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance is presented in accordance with regulatons
established by the State of Connecticut, Office of Policy and Management.

For cost reimbursement awards, revenues are recognized to the extent of expenditures. Expenditures
have been recognized to the extent the related obligation was incurred within the applicable grant period
and liquidated within 90 days after the end of the grant period.

For performance based awards, revenues are recognized to the extent of performance achieved during
the grant period.

The schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance contained in this report is prepared based on
regulations established by the State of Connecticut Office of Policy and Management. In accordance with
these regulations (Section 4-236-22), certain financial assistance is not dependent on expenditure activity
or the achievement of performance goals and, accordingly, 1s considered expended in the fiscal year of
receipt. These financial assistance program receipts are reflected in the expenditures column of the
schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance.
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF STATE FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

I. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditors’ report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
QO Material weakness(es) identified? Yes No
None
QO  Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes Reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes No
STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
Internal control over major programs:
O Material weakness(es) identified? Yes No
None
O Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes Reported
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs: Ungqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Section 4-236-24 of the Regulations to the State Single
Audit Act? Yes No
The following schedule reflects the major programs included in the audit:
State Grant Program
State Grantor/ Core-CT
Program Number Expenditures
Department of Economic Development
Urban Action Bonds 13019-ECID46440-41240 $ 700,000
Office of Policy and Management
Payment in Lieu of Taxes on State-owned Property 11000-OPM20600-17004 842,695
Property Tax Relief for Elderly and Totally
Disabled Homeowners 11000-OPM20600-17018 106,034

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $200,000

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

® We issued a report dated February 28, 2013 on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance
with other matters based on an audit of financial statements performed in accordance with Government

Auditing Standards.

e The report indicated no reportable instances of noncompliance or other matters

® The report indicated a matter that 1s considered to be a material weakness in internal control over financial

reporting (2012-1).
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TOWN OF MONTVILLE, CONNECTICUT
SCHEDULE OF STATE FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

ITII. STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

No findings or questioned costs are reported.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF THE STATUS OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

No findings were reported in the prior year.
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